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ITEM 1. SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS JULY 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)

Calamos Global Total Return Fund

 SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS JULY 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)

PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT VALUE

CORPORATE BONDS (16.1%)
Consumer Discretionary (4.2%)

700,000 NetFlix, Inc.µ
8.500%, 11/15/17 $ 763,000

2,000,000 Royal Caribbean Cruises, Ltd.µ
7.250%, 06/15/16 2,030,000

2,000,000 Service Corp. Internationalµ
7.500%, 04/01/27 1,815,000

4,608,000

Consumer Staples (0.2%)
230,000 Del Monte Foods Company

7.500%, 10/15/19 243,512
40,000 TreeHouse Foods, Inc.

7.750%, 03/01/18 42,350

285,862

Energy (2.2%)
620,000 Frontier Oil Corp.µ

8.500%, 09/15/16 635,500
1,000,000 Petroplus Holdings, AG*

6.750%, 05/01/14 905,000
750,000 Petróleo Brasileiro, SAµ

8.375%, 12/10/18 947,496

2,487,996

Financials (0.9%)
920,000 Leucadia National Corp.µ

8.125%, 09/15/15 961,400

Health Care (1.8%)
1,800,000 HCA, Inc.

9.250%, 11/15/16 1,948,500
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Industrials (2.0%)
1,800,000 H&E Equipment Services, Inc.µ

8.375%, 07/15/16 1,739,250
410,000 SPX Corp.~

7.625%, 12/15/14 431,525

2,170,775

Materials (1.9%)
2,000,000 Mosaic Companyµ*

7.625%, 12/01/16 2,162,062

Telecommunication Services (2.3%)
1,700,000 Frontier Communications Corp.~

9.000%, 08/15/31 1,751,000
750,000 Windstream Corp.~

8.625%, 08/01/16 785,625

2,536,625

Utilities (0.6%)
1,000,000 Energy Future Holdings Corp.

10.250%, 11/01/15 675,000

TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS
(Cost $17,483,496) 17,836,220

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (28.6%)
Consumer Staples (1.2%)

1,350,000 Archer-Daniels-Midland Companyµ
0.875%, 02/15/14 1,329,750

Energy (1.7%)
1,800,000 Acergy, SA

2.250%, 10/11/13 1,856,575

Financials (0.7%)
700,000 Leucadia National Corp.µ

3.750%, 04/15/14 799,750

Health Care (3.5%)
1,750,000 Medtronic, Inc.µ

1.625%, 04/15/13 1,769,688
760,000 Shire, PLC

2.750%, 05/09/14 759,808
1,200,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Industries, Ltd.µ

0.250%, 02/01/26 1,390,500

3,919,996
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Information Technology (7.8%)
1,700,000 GBP Autonomy Corp., PLC

3.250%, 03/04/15 2,916,985
2,718,000 EUR Cap Gemini, SAµ

1.000%, 01/01/12 1,546,803
2,700,000 Intel Corp.µ

2.950%, 12/15/35 2,689,875
680,000 Rovi Corp.*

2.625%, 02/15/40 770,950
630,000 Symantec Corp.µ

1.000%, 06/15/13 643,387

8,568,000

Materials (12.2%)
1,000,000 Anglo American, PLC

4.000%, 05/07/14 1,567,202
1,300,000 AngloGold Ashanti, Ltd.

3.500%, 05/22/14 1,461,250
2,800,000 Goldcorp, Inc.

2.000%, 08/01/14 3,195,500
2,420,000 Newmont Mining Corp.µ

3.000%, 02/15/12 3,161,125
Sino-Forest Corp.*

1,000,000 5.000%, 08/01/13 1,055,000
580,000 4.250%, 12/15/16 551,725

1,140,000 Sterlite Industries, Ltd.µ
4.000%, 10/30/14 1,108,650

1,200,000 Xstrata, PLC
4.000%, 08/14/17 1,359,000

13,459,452

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Investments
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Calamos Global Total Return Fund

 SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS JULY 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)

PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT VALUE

Telecommunication Services (1.5%)
1,700,000 NII Holdings, Inc.

2.750%, 08/15/25 $ 1,706,375

TOTAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Cost $32,203,677) 31,639,898

U.S. GOVERNMENT AND AGENCY SECURITY (0.5%)
510,000 United States Treasury Note~

1.500%, 10/31/10
(Cost $511,558) 511,694

SOVEREIGN BONDS (5.8%)
1,500,000 AUD Commonwealth of Australia

6.250%, 06/15/14 1,431,214
250,000 BRL Federal Republic of Brazil

10.000%, 01/01/12 1,404,629
1,450,000 CAD Government of Canada

2.000%, 12/01/14 1,398,731
930,000 NZD Government of New Zealand

6.000%, 04/15/15 714,107
8,000,000 NOK Kingdom of Norway

4.250%, 05/19/17 1,436,237

TOTAL SOVEREIGN BONDS
(Cost $6,335,729) 6,384,918

NUMBER OF
SHARES VALUE

CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCKS (6.8%)
Consumer Staples (2.0%)

40,000 Archer-Daniels-Midland Companyµ
6.250% 1,536,400

7,800 Bunge, Ltd.
4.875% 647,400
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2,183,800

Energy (1.0%)
21,000 Apache Corp.

6.000% 1,149,750

Financials (2.4%)
17,000 American International Group, Inc.µ

8.500% 131,240
2,700 Bank of America Corp.µ

7.250% 2,484,000

2,615,240

Materials (1.4%)
19,000 Vale, SA

6.750% 1,515,060

TOTAL CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCKS
(Cost $8,154,370) 7,463,850

NUMBER OF
UNITS VALUE

STRUCTURED EQUITY-LINKED SECURITIES (3.1%)+*
Energy (2.4%)

15,500 BNP Paribas, SA (ENSCO, PLC)
11.000%, 11/22/10 $ 662,780

7,800 Deutsche Bank, AG (Apache Corp.)
12.000%, 12/21/10 731,328

11,500 JPMorgan Chase & Company (Devon Energy Corp.)
12.000%, 02/02/11 714,955

25,000 JPMorgan Chase & Company (Pride International, Inc.)
12.000%, 08/10/10 593,500

2,702,563

Materials (0.7%)
18,000 Credit Suisse Group (Barrick Gold Corp.)

11.000%, 11/16/10 736,740

TOTAL STRUCTURED EQUITY-LINKED
SECURITIES
(Cost $3,603,497) 3,439,303

NUMBER OF
SHARES VALUE
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COMMON STOCKS (62.1%)
Consumer Discretionary (4.6%)

90,000 CHF Swatch Group, AG 5,061,169

Consumer Staples (9.0%)
33,000 Coca-Cola Companyµ 1,818,630
128,000 GBP Diageo, PLCµ 2,221,365
55,000 CHF Nestlé, SAµ 2,718,483
46,000 SEK Swedish Match, AB 1,085,846
41,500 Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 2,124,385

9,968,709

Energy (6.3%)
90,000 GBP AMEC, PLCµ 1,232,374
17,000 Chevron Corp.µ 1,295,570
70,000 Halliburton Companyµ 2,091,600
21,000 EUR Technip, SA 1,397,938
72,000 NOK TGS Nopec Geophysical Company, ASA# 953,156

6,970,638

Financials (5.4%)
70,300 GBP Schroders, PLC 1,419,231
350,000 SGD Singapore Exchange, Ltd. 1,975,743
91,000 GBP Standard Chartered, PLC 2,629,153

6,024,127

Health Care (10.8%)
29,000 Alcon, Inc.µ 4,497,320
39,000 Johnson & Johnsonµ 2,265,510
24,000 Medtronic, Inc.µ 887,280

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Investments
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Calamos Global Total Return Fund

 SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS JULY 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)

NUMBER OF
SHARES VALUE

40,000 DKK Novo Nordisk, A/S - Class Bµ $ 3,422,508
37,500 GBP Shire, PLC 857,742

11,930,360

Industrials (6.5%)
163,000 CHF ABB, Ltd.µ# 3,290,284
52,000 General Electric Companyµ 838,240
12,700 EUR Schneider Electric, SA 1,461,757
16,000 EUR Siemens, AG 1,565,127

7,155,408

Information Technology (19.5%)
880,000 GBP ARM Holdings, PLC 4,526,004
117,000 GBP Autonomy Corp., PLCµ# 3,018,923
37,000 JPY Canon, Inc.µ 1,602,683
130,000 Dell, Inc.µ# 1,721,200
49,000 Infosys Technologies, Ltd.µ 2,963,520
54,000 Microsoft Corp.µ 1,393,740
7,500 JPY Nintendo Company, Ltd.µ 2,093,752

175,000 EUR Nokia, OYJµ# 1,647,938
35,000 QUALCOMM, Inc.µ 1,332,800
28,000 EUR SAP, AG 1,279,173

21,579,733

TOTAL COMMON STOCKS
(Cost $73,618,416) 68,690,144

NUMBER OF
Accrued expenses
38,941

59,619
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Other liabilities
61,655

63,220

Total liabilities
4,728,002

4,537,469

Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
—

—

Equity

Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share, 600,000,000 shares authorized; 100,634,049 and 96,258,847
shares issued and 97,956,103 and 93,641,260 shares outstanding
99

94

Class B common stock, par value $0.001 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 13,317,419 and 17,667,251 shares
issued and outstanding
13

18

Additional paid-in capital
1,368,548

1,306,136

Treasury stock, 2,677,947 and 2,617,587 shares, at cost
(32,684
)

(31,956
)
Dividends in Excess of Earnings
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(18,659
)

(39,112
)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
(7,880
)

(212
)
Total shareholders’ equity
1,309,437

1,234,968

Noncontrolling interest in operating partnership
184,201

240,861

Noncontrolling interest in consolidated joint ventures
9,654

12,317

Total equity
1,503,292

1,488,146

Total liabilities and equity
$
6,231,294

$
6,025,615

(1)Includes amounts relating to consolidated variable interest entities. See Note 3.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ladder Capital Corp
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share and Dividend Data)
(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017

Net interest income
Interest income $78,206 $57,512
Interest expense 44,713 31,415
Net interest income 33,493 26,097
Provision for loan losses 3,000 —
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 30,493 26,097

Other income
Operating lease income 24,560 19,630
Tenant recoveries 3,577 1,579
Sale of loans, net 4,888 (999 )
Realized gain (loss) on securities (1,099 ) 5,361
Unrealized gain (loss) on Agency interest-only securities 204 159
Realized gain on sale of real estate, net 31,010 2,331
Fee and other income 6,252 4,466
Net result from derivative transactions 14,959 (1,981 )
Earnings (loss) from investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 52 (74 )
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt (69 ) (54 )
Total other income 84,334 30,418
Costs and expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 17,096 16,042
Operating expenses 5,548 5,479
Real estate operating expenses 8,817 7,454
Fee expense 843 693
Depreciation and amortization 10,823 8,592
Total costs and expenses 43,127 38,260
Income (loss) before taxes 71,700 18,255
Income tax expense (benefit) 3,902 (1,375 )
Net income (loss) 67,798 19,630
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated joint ventures (8,422 ) (322 )
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in operating partnership (8,501 ) (5,838 )
Net income (loss) attributable to Class A common shareholders $50,875 $13,470

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017

Earnings per share:
Basic $0.53 $ 0.18
Diluted $0.53 $ 0.18

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 95,187,31672,871,990
Diluted 95,389,219109,334,847

Dividends per share of Class A common stock (Note 12) $0.315 $ 0.300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ladder Capital Corp
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017

Net income (loss) $67,798 $19,630

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities, available for sale (9,956 ) 10,485
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) included in net income 1,099 (5,734 )

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (8,857 ) 4,751

Comprehensive income 58,941 24,381
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated joint ventures (8,422 ) (322 )
Comprehensive income of combined Class A common shareholders and Operating Partnership
unitholders $50,519 $24,059

Comprehensive (income) attributable to noncontrolling interest in operating partnership (7,172 ) (7,472 )
Comprehensive income attributable to Class A common shareholders $43,347 $16,587

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ladder Capital Corp
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(Dollars and Shares in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

Shareholders’ Equity
Class A Common StockClass B Common Stock

Additional Paid-

in-Capital

Treasury

Stock

Retained
Earnings/(Dividends
in Excess of

Earnings)

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive
Income

(Loss)

Noncontrolling Interests
Total Shareholders’

Equity/Partners

Capital
Shares Par Shares Par

Operating

Partnership

Consolidated

Joint Ventures

Balance,
December 31,
2017

93,641 $94 17,668 $18 $1,306,136 $(31,956) $(39,112) $(212 ) $240,861 $12,317 $1,488,146

Contributions — — — — — — — — — 2,635 2,635
Distributions — — — — — — — — (4,273 ) (13,720 ) (17,993 )
Amendment of
the par value of
the Class B
shares from no
par value per
share to $0.001
per share

— — — — — — — — — — —

Equity based
compensation — — — — 2,400 — — — — — 2,400

Grants of
restricted stock 25 — — — — — — — — — —

Purchase of
treasury stock — — — — — — — — — — —

Re-issuance of
treasury stock — — — — — — — — — — —

Shares acquired
to satisfy
minimum
required federal
and state tax
withholding on
vesting
restricted stock
and units

(49 ) — — — — (728 ) — — — — (728 )

Forfeitures (11 ) — — — — — — — — — —
Dividends
declared — — — — — — (30,422 ) — — — (30,422 )

Stock
dividends — — — — — — — — — — —

Exchange of
noncontrolling
interest for

4,350 5 (4,350 ) (5 ) 60,110 — — (143 ) (59,654 ) — 313
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common stock
Adjustment for
deferred
taxes/tax
receivable
agreement as a
result of the
exchange of
Class B shares

— — — — — — — — — — —

Net income
(loss) — — — — — — 50,875 — 8,501 8,422 67,798

Other
comprehensive
income (loss)

— — — — — — — (7,528 ) (1,329 ) — (8,857 )

Rebalancing of
ownership
percentage
between
Company and
Operating
Partnership

— — — — (98 ) — — 3 95 — —

Balance,
March 31, 201897,956 $99 13,318 $13 $1,368,548 $(32,684) $(18,659) $(7,880) $184,201 $9,654 $1,503,292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ladder Capital Corp
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(Dollars and Shares in Thousands)

Shareholders’ Equity
Class A Common StockClass B Common Stock

Additional Paid-

in-Capital

Treasury

Stock

Retained
Earnings/(Dividends
in Excess of

Earnings)

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive
Income

(Loss)

Noncontrolling Interests
Total Shareholders’

Equity/Partners

Capital
Shares Par Shares Par

Operating

Partnership

Consolidated

Joint Ventures

Balance,
December 31,
2016

71,586 $72 38,003 $38 $992,307 $(11,244) $(11,148) $1,365 $533,246 $4,918 $1,509,554

Contributions — — — — — — — — — 7,479 7,479
Distributions — — — — — — — — (42,218 ) (306 ) (42,524 )
Equity based
compensation — — — — 18,965 — — — — — 18,965

Grants of
restricted stock 1,997 1 — — (1 ) — — — — — —

Purchase of
treasury stock (190 ) — — — — (2,588 ) — — — — (2,588 )

Shares acquired
to satisfy
minimum
required federal
and state tax
withholding on
vesting
restricted stock
and units

(1,323 ) (1 ) — — — (18,124 ) — — — — (18,125 )

Forfeitures (10 ) — — — — — — — — — —
Dividends
declared — — — — — — (105,921 ) — — — (105,921 )

Stock
dividends 814 1 432 1 17,317 — (17,319 ) — — — —

Exchange of
noncontrolling
interest for
common stock

20,767 21 (20,767) (21 ) 280,714 — — 1,696 (284,763 ) — (2,353 )

Net income
(loss) — — — — — — 95,276 — 30,377 226 125,879

Other
comprehensive
income (loss)

— — — — — — — (2,915 ) 695 — (2,220 )

Rebalancing of
ownership
percentage
between

— — — — (3,166 ) — — (358 ) 3,524 — —
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Company and
Operating
Partnership
Balance,
December 31,
2017

93,641 $94 17,668 $18 $1,306,136 $(31,956) $(39,112) $(212 ) $240,861 $12,317 $1,488,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ladder Capital Corp
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in Thousands)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $67,798 $19,630
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt 69 54
Depreciation and amortization 10,823 8,592
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivative instruments (1,772 ) 5,649
Unrealized (gain) loss on Agency interest-only securities (204 ) (159 )
Unrealized (gain) loss on investment in mutual fund (43 ) (40 )
Provision for loan losses 3,000 —
Amortization of equity based compensation 2,400 7,254
Amortization of deferred financing costs included in interest expense 2,328 2,436
Amortization of premium on mortgage loan financing (253 ) (226 )
Amortization of above- and below-market lease intangibles (382 ) (25 )
Amortization of premium/(accretion) of discount and other fees on loans (4,794 ) (2,468 )
Amortization of premium/(accretion) of discount and other fees on securities 1,000 1,483
Realized (gain) loss on sale of mortgage loan receivables held for sale (4,888 ) 999
Realized (gain) loss on real estate securities 1,099 (5,361 )
Realized gain on sale of real estate, net (31,010 ) (2,331 )
Realized gain on sale of derivative instruments (13 ) —
Origination of mortgage loan receivables held for sale (532,878) (279,898)
Repayment of mortgage loan receivables held for sale 133 247
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loan receivables held for sale 439,261 (1)—
(Income) loss from investments in unconsolidated joint ventures in excess of distributions
received (52 ) 74

Deferred tax asset (liability) 443 (2,728 )
Payments pursuant to tax receivable agreement — (230 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable (1,349 ) (2,826 )
Other assets 6,157 29,476
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (21,991 ) (22,781 )
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (65,118 ) (243,179)

12
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Three Months Ended
March 31,
2018 2017

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of derivative instruments — (199 )
Sale of derivative instruments 114 —
Purchases of real estate securities (135,072 ) (43,572 )
Repayment of real estate securities 2,954 74,285
Proceeds from sales of real estate securities 122,356 361,323
Origination of mortgage loan receivables held for investment (434,632 ) (249,829 )
Repayment of mortgage loan receivables held for investment 194,303 68,251
Basis recovery of Agency interest-only securities 5,407 17,874
Capital distribution from investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 1,250 —
Capitalization of interest on investment in unconsolidated joint ventures (322 ) (234 )
Purchases of real estate (24,466 ) (3,892 )
Capital improvements of real estate (1,883 ) (752 )
Proceeds from sale of real estate 87,885 (2)6,325
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (182,106 ) 229,580
Cash flows from financing activities:
Deferred financing costs paid (1,240 ) (8,143 )
Proceeds from borrowings under debt obligations 1,312,451 2,666,161
Repayment of borrowings under debt obligations (1,057,704) (2,231,899)
Cash dividends paid to Class A common shareholders (59,721 ) (48,367 )
(Increase) decrease in amount due from trustee included in other assets — (302,281 )
Capital distributed to noncontrolling interests in operating partnership (4,273 ) (21,034 )
Capital contributed by noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures 2,635 —
Capital distributed to noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures (13,720 ) —
Payment of liability assumed in exchange for shares for the minimum withholding taxes on
vesting restricted stock (728 ) (13,258 )

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 177,700 41,179
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (69,524 ) 27,580
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 182,683 89,428
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $113,159 $117,008
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Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017

Supplemental information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $57,406 $26,773
Cash paid (received) for income taxes 90 (1,147 )

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Securities and derivatives purchased, not settled 14 (2,167 )
Repayment in transit of mortgage loans receivable held for investment 54,803 —
Reduction in proceeds from sales of real estate 11,050 —
Transfer from mortgage loans receivable held for sale to mortgage loans receivable held for
investment, at amortized cost 55,403 119,952

Assumption of debt obligations by real estate buyer (11,050 ) —
Exchange of noncontrolling interest for common stock 59,658 93,691
Change in deferred tax asset related to exchanges of noncontrolling interest for common stock (226 ) 845
Increase in amount payable pursuant to tax receivable agreement (86 ) 40
Rebalancing of ownership percentage between Company and Operating Partnership 95 (4,219 )
Dividends declared, not paid 1,228 1,017
Stock dividends — 17,319

(1)Includes cash proceeds received in the current year that relate to prior year sales of loans of $0.5 million.
(2)Includes cash proceeds received in the current year that relate to prior year sales of real estate of $1.4 million.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the
consolidated balance sheets that sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
cash flows ($ in thousands):

March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

December 31,
2017

Cash and cash equivalents $68,373 $62,568 $ 76,674
Restricted cash 44,786 54,440 106,009
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows $113,159 $117,008 $ 182,683

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ladder Capital Corp
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Ladder Capital Corp is an internally-managed real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that is a leader in commercial real
estate finance. Ladder Capital Corp, as the general partner of Ladder Capital Finance Holdings LLLP (“LCFH,”
“Predecessor” or the “Operating Partnership”), operates the Ladder Capital business through LCFH and its subsidiaries. As
of March 31, 2018, Ladder Capital Corp has a 88.0% economic interest in LCFH and controls the management of
LCFH as a result of its ability to appoint its board members. Accordingly, Ladder Capital Corp consolidates the
financial results of LCFH and records noncontrolling interest for the economic interest in LCFH held by the
Continuing LCFH Limited Partners (as defined below). In addition, Ladder Capital Corp, through certain subsidiaries
which are treated as taxable REIT subsidiaries (each a “TRS”), is indirectly subject to U.S. federal, state and local
income taxes. Other than the noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership and such indirect U.S. federal, state
and local income taxes, there are no material differences between Ladder Capital Corp’s consolidated financial
statements and LCFH’s consolidated financial statements.

Ladder Capital Corp was formed as a Delaware corporation on May 21, 2013. The Company conducted an initial
public offering (“IPO”) which closed on February 11, 2014. The Company used the net proceeds from the IPO to
purchase newly issued limited partnership units (“LP Units”) from LCFH. In connection with the IPO, Ladder Capital
Corp also became a holding corporation and the general partner of, and obtained a controlling interest in, LCFH.
Ladder Capital Corp’s only business is to act as the general partner of LCFH, and, as such, Ladder Capital Corp
indirectly operates and controls all of the business and affairs of LCFH and its subsidiaries through its ability to
appoint the LCFH board. The proceeds received by LCFH in connection with the sale of the LP Units have been and
will be used for loan origination and related real estate business lines and for general corporate purposes. The IPO
transactions described herein are referred to as the “IPO Transactions.”

In anticipation of the Company’s election to be subject to tax as a REIT under the Code beginning with its 2015
taxable year (the “REIT Election”), the Company effected an internal realignment as of December 31, 2014. As part of
this realignment, LCFH and certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries were serialized in order to segregate our
REIT-qualified assets and income from the Company’s non-REIT-qualified assets and income. Pursuant to such
serialization, all assets and liabilities of LCFH and each such subsidiary were identified as TRS assets and liabilities
(e.g., conduit securitization and condominium sales businesses) and REIT assets and liabilities (e.g., balance sheet
loans, real estate and most securities), and were allocated on the Company’s internal books and records into two pools
within LCFH or such subsidiary, Series TRS and Series REIT (collectively, the “Series”), respectively. Series REIT and
Series TRS have separate boards, officers, books and records, bank accounts, and tax identification numbers. Each
outstanding LP Unit was exchanged for one Series REIT limited partnership unit (“Series REIT LP Unit”), which is
entitled to receive profits and losses derived from REIT assets and liabilities, and one Series TRS limited partnership
unit (“Series TRS LP Unit”), which is entitled to receive profits and losses derived from TRS assets and liabilities
(Series REIT LP Units and Series TRS LP Units are collectively referred to as “Series Units”). Ladder Capital Corp
remains the general partner of Series REIT of LCFH. LC TRS I LLC (“LC TRS I”), a Delaware limited liability
company wholly-owned by Series REIT of LCFH, serves as the general partner of Series TRS of LCFH and Series
TRS LP Units are exchangeable for an equal number of shares (“TRS Shares”) of LC TRS I (a “TRS Exchange”);

Ladder Capital Corp consolidates the financial results of LCFH and its subsidiaries. The ownership interest of certain
existing owners of LCFH, who owned LP Units and an equivalent number of shares of Ladder Capital Corp Class B
common stock as of the completion of the IPO (the “Continuing LCFH Limited Partners”) and continue to hold
equivalent Series Units and Ladder Capital Corp Class B common stock, is reflected as a noncontrolling interest in
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Pursuant to LCFH’s Third Amended and Restated LLLP Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2014 and as amended
from time to time, and subject to the applicable minimum retained ownership requirements and certain other
restrictions, including notice requirements, from time to time, Continuing LCFH Limited Partners (or certain
transferees thereof)
may from time to time, subject to certain conditions, receive one share of the Company’s Class A common stock in
exchange for (i) one share of the Company’s Class B common stock, (ii) one Series REIT LP Unit and (iii) either one
Series TRS LP Unit or one TRS Share, subject to equitable adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends and
reclassifications. However, such exchange for shares of Ladder Capital Corp Class A common stock will not affect the
exchanging owners’ voting power since the votes represented by the canceled shares of Ladder Capital Corp Class B
common stock will be replaced with the votes represented by the shares of Class A common stock for which
such Series Units, including TRS Shares as applicable, will be exchanged.

As a result of the Company’s ownership interest in LCFH and LCFH’s election under Section 754 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the Company expects to benefit from depreciation and other tax
deductions reflecting LCFH’s tax basis for its assets. Those deductions will be allocated to the Company and will be
taken into account in reporting the Company’s taxable income.

As of March 4, 2015, the Company made the necessary TRS and check-the-box elections began to elect to be taxed as
a REIT starting with its tax return for the year ended December 31, 2015, filed in September 2016.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). In the opinion of management, the unaudited
financial information for the interim periods presented in this report reflects all normal and recurring adjustments
necessary for a fair statement of results of operations, financial position and cash flows. The interim consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017, which are included in the Company’s Annual Report, as certain disclosures would
substantially duplicate those contained in the audited consolidated financial statements have not been included in this
interim report. Operating results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of operating results for an entire
fiscal year. The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared, without audit, and do not necessarily
include all information and footnotes necessary for a fair statement of our consolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with GAAP.

The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s accounts and those of its subsidiaries which are
majority-owned and/or controlled by the Company and variable interest entities for which the Company has
determined itself to be the primary beneficiary, if any. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have
been eliminated.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 810 — Consolidation
(“ASC 810”), provides guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other than
voting rights (“variable interest entities” or “VIEs”) and the determination of which business enterprise, if any, should
consolidate the VIEs. Generally, the consideration of whether an entity is a VIE applies when either: (1) the equity
investors (if any) lack one or more of the essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest; (2) the equity
investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entity’s activities without additional subordinated financial support; or
(3) the equity investors have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic interests and the activities of the
entity involve or are conducted on behalf of an investor with a disproportionately small voting interest. The Company

Edgar Filing: CALAMOS GLOBAL TOTAL RETURN FUND - Form N-Q

24



consolidates VIEs in which it is considered to be the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is the entity that
has both of the following characteristics: (1) the power to direct the activities that, when taken together, most
significantly impact the VIE’s performance; and (2) the obligation to absorb losses and right to receive the returns from
the VIE that would be significant to the VIE. See Note 3 for further information on the Company’s consolidated
variable interest entities.

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries are defined as “the portion of the equity (net assets) in the
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent.” Noncontrolling interests are presented as a separate
component of capital in the consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the presentation of net income attributes earnings
to shareholders/unitholders (controlling interest) and noncontrolling interests.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the balance sheets and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of resulting changes are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements in the period the changes are deemed to be necessary. Significant estimates made
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to the following:

•valuation of real estate securities;
•allocation of purchase price for acquired real estate;
•impairment, and useful lives, of real estate;
•useful lives of intangible assets;
•valuation of derivative instruments;
•valuation of deferred tax asset (liability);
•amounts payable pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement;
•determination of effective yield for recognition of interest income;
•adequacy of provision for loan losses;

•determination of other than temporary impairment of real estate securities and investments in unconsolidated jointventures;

•certain estimates and assumptions used in the accrual of incentive compensation and calculation of the fair value ofequity compensation issued to employees;
•determination of the effective tax rate for income tax provision; and
•certain estimates and assumptions used in the allocation of revenue and expenses for our segment reporting.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all investments with original maturities of three months or less, at the time of acquisition, to
be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash accounts at several financial institutions, which are insured up to a
maximum of $250,000 per account as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. At March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, and at various times during the years, the balances exceeded the insured limits.

Restricted Cash 

Restricted cash is comprised of accounts the Company maintains with brokers to facilitate financial derivative and
repurchase agreement transactions in support of its loan and securities investments and risk management activities.
Based on the value of the positions in these accounts and the associated margin requirements, the Company may be
required to deposit additional cash into these broker accounts. The cash collateral held by broker is considered
restricted cash. Restricted cash also includes tenant security deposits, deposits related to real estate sales and
acquisitions and required escrow balances on credit facilities. Prior to January 1, 2017, these amounts were previously
recorded in other assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Out-of-Period Adjustments

During the first quarter of 2017, the Company recorded an out-of-period adjustment to reduce depreciation expense of
$0.8 million related to prior periods. The Company has concluded that this adjustment is not material to the financial
position or results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2017 or any prior periods; accordingly, the
Company recorded the related adjustment in the three month period ended March 31, 2017.
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During the first quarter of 2018, the Company recorded an out-of-period adjustment to increase tenant real estate tax
recoveries on a net lease property by $1.1 million, which was not billed until the three month period ended March 31,
2018, but related to prior periods. The Company has concluded that this adjustment is not material to the financial
position or results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018 or any prior periods; accordingly, the
Company recorded the related adjustment in the three month period ended March 31, 2018.
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Change in Accounting Principle

As more fully described in Note 4, on June 29, 2017, the Company completed its first sponsored securitization
transaction whereby it transferred $625.7 million of loans to LCCM 2017-LC26 securitization trust. The Company
initially concluded that the transfer restrictions placed on the Third Party Purchaser (“TPP”) of the risk retention
securities, imposed by the risk retention rules of the Dodd-Frank Act, precluded sale accounting under ASC 860 and,
accordingly, the Company originally accounted for the transaction as a financing in its interim financial statements for
the periods ended June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2017. As a result of industry discussions, in November 2017 the
staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC staff”) indicated that, despite such restrictions, they would
not take exception to a registrant treating such transfers as sales if they otherwise met all the criteria for sale
accounting. The Company believes treatment of such transfers as sales is more consistent with the substance of such
transaction and, accordingly, changed its accounting principle to treat such transfers as sales in the quarter ended
December 31, 2017. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company reflected this change
in accounting principle retrospectively to prior interim periods within 2017. The retrospective changes will be
reflected in the Company’s quarterly reports for the quarters ended June 30, 2018 and September 30, 2018 to the
comparable 2017 interim periods.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (“ASU 2014-09”), that outlined a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and superseded most
then-current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. ASU 2014-09 is based on the
principle that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized
from costs incurred to fulfill a contract. Entities have the option of using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of the new standard. ASU 2014-09 was initially scheduled to become effective
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting
period; early adoption was not permitted. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606) — Deferral of the Effective Date (“ASU 2015-14”), which deferred the effective date of ASU
2014-09 for one year and permitted early adoption as early as the original effective date of ASU 2014-09. The new
revenue standard may be applied retrospectively to each prior period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognized as of the date of adoption. In 2016, the FASB issued additional guidance to clarify the
implementation guidance, ASU 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus
Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net) (“ASU 2016-08”); ASU 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing (“ASU 2017-10”); ASU 2016-11,
Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Rescission of SEC Guidance Because of
Accounting Standards Updates 2014-09 and 2014-16 Pursuant to Staff Announcements at the March 3, 2016
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Meeting (SEC Update) (“ASU 2016-11”), ASU 2016-12, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients (“ASU 2016-12”); and ASU
2016-20, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU
2016-20”). In February 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-05, Other Income—Gains and Losses from the Derecognition
of Nonfinancial Assets (Subtopic 610-20) (“ASU 2017-05”). In September 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-13,
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Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Leases (Topic 840), and
Leases (Topic 842): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to the Staff Announcement at the July 20, 2017 EITF
Meeting and Rescission f Prior SEC Staff Announcements and Observer Comments (SEC Update) (“ASU 2017-13”). In
November 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-14, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220),
Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), and Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (SEC Update) (“ASU
2017-14”). These amendments provide additional clarification and implementation guidance on the previously issued
ASU 2014-09.
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Under the full retrospective method, a company will apply the rules to contracts in all reporting periods presented,
subject to certain allowable exceptions. Under the modified retrospective method, a company will apply the rules to
all contracts existing as of January 1, 2018, recognizing in beginning retained earnings an adjustment for the
cumulative effect of the change and providing additional disclosures comparing results to previous rules. The
Company believes the effects on its existing accounting policies will be associated with its non-leasing revenue
components, specifically the amount, timing and presentation of tenant expense reimbursements revenue. The
Company adopted the standard using the modified retrospective approach on January 1, 2018 and there was no
cumulative effect adjustment recognized. The Company’s revenues impacted by this standard are included in tenant
recoveries in the consolidated statements of income.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ASU 2016-01”), which was further amended in February
and in March 2018 by ASU 2018-03, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments—Overall
(Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities (“ASU 2018-03”) and ASU
2018-04, Investments—Debt Securities (Topic 320) and Regulated Operations (Topic 980): Amendments to SEC
Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 117 and SEC Release No. 33-9273 (SEC Update) (“ASU
2018-04”) to clarify certain aspects of ASU 2016-01 and to update Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
interpretive guidance in connection with the provisions of ASU 2016-01. These updates provide guidance for the
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. Among other changes, the updates
require public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for
disclosure purposes, and clarifies that entities should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax
asset related to available for sale securities in combination with the entities' other deferred tax assets. These standards
are effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and for interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Company adopted the guidance effective January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective
method. Upon adoption, the fair value of the Company's loan portfolio is now presented using an exit price method.
Also, the Company is no longer required to disclose the methodologies used for estimating fair value of financial
assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring or nonrecurring basis. The remaining
requirements of this update did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718) (“ASU 2017-09”). The
ASU provides clarification on when modification accounting should be used for changes to the terms or conditions of
a share-based payment award. ASU 2017-09 does not change the accounting for modifications but clarifies that
modification accounting guidance should only be applied if there is a change to the value, vesting conditions or award
classification and would not be required if the changes are considered non-substantive. The amendments of this ASU
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company
adopted the guidance effective January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU 2017-09 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”), which sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract (i.e. lessees and
lessors). The new standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as either operating leases based
on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will
determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. A lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a
term greater than 12 months regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be
accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating leases today. The new standard requires lessors to account for
leases using an approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sale-type leases, direct financing
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leases and operating leases. ASU 2016-02 supersedes the previous lease standard, Leases (Topic 840). The standard is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2019, with an early adoption permitted. The Company continues to evaluate
the effect the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will have on the Company’s financial position and/or results of operations. The
Company currently believes that the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will not have a material impact for operating leases
where it is a lessor and will continue to record revenues from rental properties for its operating leases on a
straight-line basis. However, for leases where the Company is the lessee, primarily for the Company’s corporate
headquarters and regional offices, the Company will measure the present value of the future lease payments and
recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability on its balance sheet.
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In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”). The guidance changes the impairment model for most
financial assets. The new model uses a forward-looking expected loss method, which will generally result in earlier
recognition of allowances for losses. ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2019, and early adoption is permitted for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15,
2018. The Company must apply the amendments in this update through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained
earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is effective. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of this standard on the consolidated financial statements. In general, the allowance for credit
losses is expected to increase when changing from an incurred loss to expected loss methodology. The models and
methodologies that are currently used in estimating the allowance for credit losses are being evaluated to identify the
changes necessary to meet the requirements of the new standard. 

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) (“ASU 2017-04”). The
ASU simplifies the accounting for goodwill impairment. The guidance removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment
test, which requires a hypothetical purchase price allocation. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which
a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. The guidance
will be applied prospectively and is effective for annual or any interim goodwill impairment tests in years beginning
after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted. The Company does not currently expect any impact on its
consolidated financial statements as the Company (absent a business combination) has no recorded goodwill.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, Receivables-Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20)
(“ASU 2017-08”). The ASU shortens the amortization period for the premium on certain purchased callable debt
securities to the earliest call date. Today, entities generally amortize the premium over the contractual life of the
security. The new guidance does not change the accounting for purchased callable debt securities held at a discount;
the discount continues to be amortized to maturity. ASU No. 2017-08 is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018; early adoption is permitted. The guidance calls for a modified
retrospective transition approach under which a cumulative-effect adjustment will be made to retained earnings as of
the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is adopted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact that this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements when adopted.

In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11, Earnings Per Share (Topic 260), Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity
(Topic 480) and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): I. Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Down
Round Features; II. Replacement of the Indefinite Deferral for Mandatorily Redeemable Financial Instruments of
Certain Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests with a Scope Exception,
(“ASU 2017-11”). Part I of this update addresses the complexity of accounting for certain financial instruments with
down round features. Down round features are features of certain equity-linked instruments (or embedded features)
that result in the strike price being reduced on the basis of the pricing of future equity offerings. Current accounting
guidance creates cost and complexity for entities that issue financial instruments (such as warrants and convertible
instruments) with down round features that require fair value measurement of the entire instrument or conversion
option. Part II of this update addresses the difficulty of navigating Topic 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity,
because of the existence of extensive pending content in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. This pending
content is the result of the indefinite deferral of accounting requirements about mandatorily redeemable financial
instruments of certain nonpublic entities and certain mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests. The
amendments in Part II of this update do not have an accounting effect. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently assessing the
potential impact of adopting ASU 2017-11 on its financial statements and related disclosures.

In January 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842,
(“ASU 2018-01”). This ASU provides an optional transition practical expedient that, if elected, would not require
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companies to reconsider their accounting for existing or expired land easements before adoption of Topic 842 and that
were not previously accounted for as leases under Topic 840. This ASU will be effective January 1, 2019, and early
adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of adopting ASU 2018-01 on its
financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic
220), (“ASU 2018-02”). This ASU allows an entity to elect to reclassify the stranded tax effects related to the Tax Cuts
and Jobs Act of 2017 from accumulated other comprehensive income into retained earnings. This ASU will be
effective January 1, 2019, and early adoption is permitted. The Company is does not expect the adoption of ASU
2018-02 to have a material impact on its financial statements and related disclosures.
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In March 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-05, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs
Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (SEC Update), (“ASU 2018-05”), which included amendments to
SEC paragraphs pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”). The pronouncement addresses certain
circumstances that may arise for registrants in accounting for the income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act,
including when certain income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act are incomplete by the time financial
statements are issued. The Company has complied with the amendments related to SAB 118, as discussed further in
Note 16.

Any new accounting standards not disclosed above that have been issued or proposed by FASB and that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon
adoption.

3. CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES 

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 810 — Consolidation (“ASC 810”), provides guidance on the
identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting rights (“variable interest entities”
or “VIEs”) and the determination of which business enterprise, if any, should consolidate the VIEs. Generally, the
consideration of whether an entity is a VIE applies when either: (1) the equity investors (if any) lack one or more of
the essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest; (2) the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance
that entity’s activities without additional subordinated financial support; or (3) the equity investors have voting rights
that are not proportionate to their economic interests and the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf
of an investor with a disproportionately small voting interest. The Company consolidates VIEs in which it is
considered to be the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is the entity that has both of the following
characteristics: (1) the power to direct the activities that, when taken together, most significantly impact the VIE’s
performance; and (2) the obligation to absorb losses and right to receive the returns from the VIE that would be
significant to the VIE. The Operating Partnership is a VIE and as such, substantially all of the consolidated balance
sheet is a consolidated VIE. In addition, the Operating Partnership consolidates the following CLO VIEs ($ in
thousands):

March
31, 2018

December
31, 2017

Notes 4
& 8

Notes 4
& 8

Mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized cost $881,719 880,385
Accrued interest receivable 4,427 4,252
Total assets $886,146 $884,637

Senior and unsecured debt obligations $690,507 $689,961
Accrued expenses 1,379 794
Total liabilities 691,887 690,755

Net equity in VIEs (eliminated in consolidation) 194,260 193,882
Total equity 194,260 193,882

Total liabilities and equity $886,147 $884,637
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4. MORTGAGE LOAN RECEIVABLES 

March 31, 2018 ($ in thousands)

Outstanding
Face Amount

Carrying
Value

Weighted
Average
Yield (1)

Remaining
Maturity
(years)

Mortgage loans held by consolidated subsidiaries(2) $ 3,550,544 $3,528,185 7.34 % 1.59
Provision for loan losses N/A (7,000 )
Mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized
cost 3,550,544 3,521,185

Mortgage loan receivables held for sale 274,090 273,636 5.09 % 9.71
Total $ 3,824,634 $3,794,821 7.19 % 2.18

(1)March 31, 2018 London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) rates are used to calculate weighted average yield forfloating rate loans.
(2)Includes amounts relating to consolidated variable interest entities. See Note 3.

On June 29, 2017, the Company transferred its interests in $625.7 million of loans to the LCCM 2017-LC26
securitization trust. The assets transferred to the trust were comprised of 34 loans to third parties having a combined
outstanding face amount of $549.0 million and a combined carrying value of $547.7 million as well as 23 former
intercompany loans secured by certain of the Company’s real estate assets, having a combined principal balance of
$76.7 million (which had not previously been recognized for accounting purposes because they eliminated in
consolidation). In connection with this transaction, pursuant to the 5% risk retention requirement of the Dodd-Frank
Act described in Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors,” in the Annual Report, the Company (i) retained a $12.9 million
restricted “vertical interest” consisting of approximately 2% in each class of securities issued by the trust, which must be
held by the Company until the principal balance of the pool has been reduced to a level prescribed by the risk
retention rules and (ii) sold an approximately 3% restricted “horizontal interest” in the form of 98% of the controlling
classes (excluding the 2% included in the vertical interest) to a TPP, which must be held by the TPP for at least five
years. In addition, the Company purchased $62.7 million of securities issued by the trust, which are not restricted.

The Company initially concluded that the transfer restrictions placed on the TPP of the risk retention securities,
imposed by the risk retention rules of the Dodd-Frank Act, precluded sale accounting under generally accepted
accounting principles and, accordingly, the Company originally accounted for the transaction as a financing. As a
result of industry discussions, in November 2017, the SEC staff indicated that, despite such restrictions, they would
not take exception to a registrant treating such transfers as sales if they otherwise met all the criteria for sale
accounting. The Company believes treatment of such transfers as sales is more consistent with the substance of such
transaction, and accordingly, changed its accounting principles to treat such transfers as sales in the quarter ended
December 31, 2017. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company reflected this change
in accounting principle retrospectively to prior interim periods within 2017. The retrospective changes will be
reflected in the Company’s quarterly reports for the quarters ended June 30, 2018 and September 30, 2018 to the
comparable 2017 interim periods.

In connection with the securitization transaction, the former intercompany loans, which are secured by real estate
properties still owned by the Company, will continue to be reported as a financing transaction. As a result of the
change in accounting principle, the Company recognized a gain of $26.1 million on the transaction when it closed on
June 29, 2017. In addition, upon consummation, the Company recognized $12.9 million and $62.7 million in
restricted and unrestricted securities, respectively, which are included in real estate securities on the Company’s
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consolidated balance sheets. The Company also recognized a liability for $78.8 million for 23 intercompany loans
with a combined principal balance of $76.7 million.

As of March 31, 2018, $0.8 billion, or 22.8%, of the carrying value of our mortgage loan receivables held for
investment, at amortized cost, were at fixed interest rates and $2.7 billion, or 77.2%, of the carrying value of our
mortgage loan receivables held for investment, at amortized cost, were at variable interest rates, linked to LIBOR,
some of which include interest rate floors. As of March 31, 2018, $273.6 million, or 100.0%, of the carrying value of
our mortgage loan receivables held for sale were at fixed interest rates.
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December 31, 2017 ($ in thousands)

Outstanding
Face Amount

Carrying
Value

Weighted
Average
Yield (1)

Remaining
Maturity
(years)

Mortgage loans held by consolidated subsidiaries $ 3,300,709 $3,282,462 7.18 % 1.61
Provision for loan losses N/A (4,000 )
Mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized
cost 3,300,709 3,278,462

Mortgage loan receivables held for sale 232,527 230,180 4.88 % 8.17
Total 3,533,236 3,508,642 7.03 % 2.04

(1)December 31, 2017 LIBOR rates are used to calculate weighted average yield for floating rate loans.

As of December 31, 2017, $0.7 billion, or 22.0%, of the carrying value of our mortgage loan receivables held for
investment, at amortized cost, were at fixed interest rates and $2.6 billion, or 78.0%, of the carrying value of our
mortgage loan receivables held for investment, at amortized cost, were at variable interest rates, linked to LIBOR,
some of which include interest rate floors. As of December 31, 2017, $230.2 million, or 100%, of the carrying value
of our mortgage loan receivables held for sale were at fixed interest rates.

The following table summarizes mortgage loan receivables by loan type ($ in thousands):

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Outstanding
Face Amount

Carrying
Value

Outstanding
Face Amount

Carrying
Value

Mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized
cost:
First mortgage loans $3,391,782 $3,370,086 $3,140,788 $3,123,268
Mezzanine loans 158,762 158,099 159,921 159,194
Mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized
cost 3,550,544 3,528,185 3,300,709 3,282,462

Mortgage loan receivables held for sale
First mortgage loans 274,090 273,636 232,527 230,180
Total mortgage loan receivables held for sale 274,090 273,636 232,527 230,180

Provision for loan losses N/A (7,000 ) N/A (4,000 )
Total $3,824,634 $3,794,821 $3,533,236 $3,508,642
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For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the activity in our loan portfolio was as follows ($ in
thousands):

Mortgage loan
receivables held for
investment, net, at
amortized cost:
Mortgage
loans held
by
consolidated
subsidiaries

Provision
for loan
losses

Mortgage loan 
receivables held
for sale

Balance, December 31, 2017 $3,282,462 $(4,000 ) $ 230,180
Origination of mortgage loan receivables 434,632 — 532,878
Purchases of mortgage loan receivables — — —
Repayment of mortgage loan receivables (249,106 ) — (133 )
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loan receivables — — (438,774 )
Realized gain on sale of mortgage loan receivables(1) — — 4,888
Transfer between held for investment and held for sale(2) 55,403 — (55,403 )
Accretion/amortization of discount, premium and other fees 4,794 — —
Loan loss provision — (3,000 ) —
Balance, March 31, 2018 $3,528,185 $(7,000 ) $ 273,636

(1)Includes $0.5 million of realized losses on loans related to lower of cost or market adjustments for the three monthsended March 31, 2018.

(2)

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company reclassified from mortgage loan receivables held for
sale to mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized cost, three loans with a combined
outstanding face amount of $57.6 million, a combined book value of $55.4 million (fair value at date of
reclassification) and a remaining maturity of 2.5 years. The loans had been recorded at lower of cost or market
prior to their reclassification. The discount to fair value is the result of an increase in market interest rates since the
loan’s origination and not a deterioration in credit of the borrower or collateral coverage and the Company expects
to collect all amounts due under the loan. These transfers have been reflected as non-cash items on the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2018.

Mortgage loan
receivables held for
investment, net, at
amortized cost:
Mortgage
loans held
by
consolidated
subsidiaries

Provision
for loan
losses

Mortgage loan
receivables held
for sale

Balance, December 31, 2016 $2,000,095 $(4,000 ) $ 357,882
Origination of mortgage loan receivables 249,829 — 279,898
Repayment of mortgage loan receivables (68,251 ) — (247 )
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Realized gain on sale of mortgage loan receivables(1) — — (999 )
Transfer between held for investment and held for sale(2) 119,952 — (119,952 )
Accretion/amortization of discount, premium and other fees 2,468 — —
Balance, March 31, 2017 $2,304,093 $(4,000 ) $ 516,582

(1)Includes $1.0 million  of realized losses on loans related to lower of cost or market adjustments for the threemonths ended March 31, 2017.

(2)

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company reclassified from mortgage loan receivables held for
sale to mortgage loan receivables held for investment, net, at amortized cost, a loan with an outstanding face
amount of $120.0 million, a book value of $119.9 million (fair value at date of reclassification) and a remaining
maturity of three years. The loan had been recorded at lower of cost or market prior to its reclassification. The
discount to fair value is the result of an increase in market interest rates since the loan’s origination and not a
deterioration in credit of the borrower or collateral coverage and the Company expects to collect all amounts due
under the loan. This transfer has been reflected as a non-cash item on the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the three months ended March 31, 2017.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the transfers of financial assets via sales of loans were treated as sales
under ASC Topic 860 — Transfers and Servicing.

At March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there was $0.4 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of unamortized
discounts included in our mortgage loan receivables held for investment, at amortized cost, on our consolidated
balance sheets. 

The Company evaluates each of its loans for potential losses at least quarterly. Its loans are typically collateralized by
real estate directly or indirectly. As a result, the Company regularly evaluates the extent and impact of any credit
deterioration associated with the performance and/or value of the underlying collateral property, as well as the
financial and operating capability of the borrower. Specifically, a property’s operating results and any cash reserves are
analyzed and used to assess (i) whether cash flow from operations is sufficient to cover the debt service requirements
currently and into the future, (ii) the ability of the borrower to refinance the loan at maturity, and/or (iii) the property’s
liquidation value. The Company also evaluates the financial wherewithal of any loan guarantors as well as the
borrower’s competency in managing and operating the properties. In addition, the Company considers the overall
economic environment, real estate sector, and geographic sub-market in which the collateral property is located. Such
impairment analyses are completed and reviewed by asset management personnel, who utilize various data sources,
including (i) periodic financial data such as property occupancy, tenant profile, rental rates, operating expenses, the
borrowers’ business plan, and capitalization and discount rates, (ii) site inspections, and (iii) current credit spreads and
other market data. As a result of this analysis, the Company has concluded that none of its loans, other than the two
loans discussed below, are individually impaired as of March 31, 2018 and none of its loans are individually impaired
as of December 31, 2017.

In addition, based on the inherent risks shared among the loans as a group, it is probable that the loans had incurred an
impairment due to common characteristics and inherent risks in the portfolio. Therefore, the Company has recorded a
reserve of $0.3 million, based on a targeted percentage level which it seeks to maintain over the life of the portfolio, as
disclosed in the tables below. Historically, with the exception of the two loans discussed below, the Company has not
incurred losses on any originated loans.

As of March 31, 2018, two of the Company’s loans, which were originated simultaneously as part of a single
transaction, and had a carrying value of $26.9 million, were in default. These loans are directly and indirectly secured
by the same property and are considered collateral dependent because repayment is expected to be provided solely by
the underlying collateral. At the time of the initial loan funding in July 2015, the borrowers faced an uncertain
situation as the parent company of the sole tenant of the underlying retail property had just filed for bankruptcy
protection. The tenant subsequently vacated the property and the original lease was terminated by the tenant as part of
their bankruptcy proceedings. In response to default by the borrowers, the loans were accelerated in March 2016.
Subsequently, in August 2016, the borrowers filed for bankruptcy protection. In September 2017, the bankruptcy court
approved a replacement lease proposed by the mortgage borrower for the property. That tenant commenced paying
rent in September 2017, retroactive to August 2017 as ordered by the bankruptcy court.

The Company placed these loans on non-accrual status in July 2017. In assessing these collateral dependent loans for
collectability, the most significant consideration is the fair value of the underlying real estate collateral, which
includes an in-place long-dated retail lease. The value of such properties are most significantly affected by the
contractual lease payments and the appropriate market discount rates, which are driven by the general interest
environment and the retail tenant’s credit worthiness. Through December 31, 2017, the Company believed no loss
provision was necessary as the estimated fair value of the property less the cost to sell the same exceeded the
combined carrying value of the loans.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2018, after considering the status of the on-going bankruptcy proceedings,
rising interest rates and credit spreads for retail lease properties, the Company recorded a provision for loss on these
loans of $2.7 million. The Company continues to pursue all of its legal remedies on these loans.

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 there were no other loans on non-accrual status.
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Provision for Loan Losses ($ in thousands)
Three Months
Ended March
31,
2018 2017

Provision for loan losses at beginning of period $4,000 $4,000
Provision for loan losses 3,000 —
Provision for loan losses at end of period $7,000 $4,000
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5. REAL ESTATE SECURITIES 

Commercial mortgage backed securities (“CMBS”), CMBS interest-only securities, Agency securities, Government
National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”) construction securities and Government National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA”) permanent securities are classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value with changes in fair value
recorded in the current period in other comprehensive income. GNMA and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp
(“FHLMC”) securities (collectively, “Agency interest-only securities”) are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value
recorded in current period earnings. The following is a summary of the Company’s securities at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 ($ in thousands):

March 31, 2018 

Gross Unrealized Weighted Average

Asset Type Outstanding
Face Amount

Amortized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Carrying

Value
# of
SecuritiesRating (1) Coupon %Yield %

Remaining
Duration
(years)

CMBS(2) $983,104 $991,436 $331 $(9,483 ) $982,284 (3)98 AAA 3.34% 2.89% 2.93
CMBS
interest-only(2)(4) 2,492,711 79,162 192 (319 ) 79,035 (5)21 AAA 0.87% 3.46% 2.99

GNMA
interest-only(4)(6) 165,307 4,540 142 (707 ) 3,975 13 AA+ 0.57% 6.60% 4.04

Agency
securities(2) 706 727 — (29 ) 698 2 AA+ 2.80% 1.77% 2.78

GNMA permanent
securities(2) 33,472 33,757 468 (112 ) 34,113 6 AA+ 3.97% 3.62% 5.50

Total $3,675,300 $1,109,622 $1,133 $(10,650) $1,100,105 140 1.54% 2.96% 3.02

(1)

Represents the weighted average of the ratings of all securities in each asset type, expressed as an S&P equivalent
rating.  For each security rated by multiple rating agencies, the highest rating is used.  Ratings provided were
determined by third-party rating agencies as of a particular date, may not be current and are subject to change
(including the assignment of a “negative outlook” or “credit watch”) at any time.

(2)
CMBS, CMBS interest-only securities, Agency securities, and GNMA permanent securities are classified as
available-for-sale and reported at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in the current period in other
comprehensive income.

(3)

As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities that were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitization
trust are designated as risk retention securities under the Dodd-Frank Act and are therefore subject to transfer
restrictions over the term of the securitization trust and are classified as held-to-maturity and reported at amortized
cost. Includes $11.5 million of such restricted securities.

(4)The amounts presented represent the principal amount of the mortgage loans outstanding in the pool in which theinterest-only securities participate.

(5)

As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities that were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitization
trust are designated as risk retention securities under the Dodd-Frank Act and are therefore subject to transfer
restrictions over the term of the securitization trust and are classified as held-to-maturity and reported at amortized
cost. Includes $1.0 million of such restricted securities.

(6)Agency interest-only securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in current period
earnings. The Company’s Agency interest-only securities are considered to be hybrid financial instruments that
contain embedded derivatives. As a result, the Company accounts for them as hybrid instruments in their entirety at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in unrealized gain (loss) on Agency interest-only securities in the
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December 31, 2017 

Gross Unrealized Weighted Average

Asset Type Outstanding
Face Amount

Amortized
Cost Basis Gains Losses Carrying

Value
# of
SecuritiesRating (1) Coupon %Yield %

Remaining
Duration
(years)

CMBS(2) $945,167 $954,397 $2,748 $(3,646) $953,499 (3)96 AAA 3.28% 2.79% 2.89
CMBS
interest-only(2)(4) 3,140,297 112,609 796 (334 ) 113,071 (5)25 AAA 0.81% 3.16% 3.08

GNMA
interest-only(4)(6) 172,916 5,245 157 (925 ) 4,477 13 AA+ 0.58% 6.70% 4.18

Agency
securities(2) 720 743 — (15 ) 728 2 AA+ 2.82% 1.80% 2.94

GNMA permanent
securities(2) 33,745 34,386 595 (239 ) 34,742 6 AA+ 3.98% 3.62% 5.66

Total $4,292,845 $1,107,380 $4,296 $(5,159) $1,106,517 142 1.37% 2.87% 3.00

(1)

Represents the weighted average of the ratings of all securities in each asset type, expressed as an S&P equivalent
rating.  For each security rated by multiple rating agencies, the highest rating is used.  Ratings provided were
determined by third-party rating agencies as of a particular date, may not be current and are subject to change
(including the assignment of a “negative outlook” or “credit watch”) at any time.

(2)
CMBS, CMBS interest-only securities, Agency securities, and GNMA permanent securities are classified as
available-for-sale and reported at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in the current period in other
comprehensive income.

(3)

As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities which were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitization
trust are designated as risk retention securities under the Dodd-Frank Act which are subject to transfer restrictions
over the term of the securitization trust and are classified as held-to-maturity and reported at amortized cost.
Includes $11.7 million of such restricted securities.

(4)The amounts presented represent the principal amount of the mortgage loans outstanding in the pool in which theinterest-only securities participate.

(5)

As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities which were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitization
trust are designated as risk retention securities under the Dodd-Frank Act which are subject to transfer restrictions
over the term of the securitization trust and are classified as held-to-maturity and reported at amortized cost.
Includes $1.1 million of such restricted securities.

(6)

Agency interest-only securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in current period
earnings. The Company’s Agency interest-only securities are considered to be hybrid financial instruments that
contain embedded derivatives. As a result, the Company accounts for them as hybrid instruments in their entirety at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in unrealized gain (loss) on Agency interest-only securities in the
consolidated statements of income in accordance with ASC 815.

The following is a breakdown of the carrying value of the Company’s securities by remaining maturity based upon
expected cash flows at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 ($ in thousands):

March 31, 2018 

Asset Type Within 1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years After 10 years Total

CMBS(1) $ 291,904 $516,442 $173,938 $ — $982,284
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CMBS interest-only(1) 334 78,701 — — 79,035
GNMA interest-only(2) 74 3,440 452 9 3,975
Agency securities(1) — 698 — — 698
GNMA permanent securities(1) — 1,713 32,400 — 34,113
Total $ 292,312 $600,994 $206,790 $ 9 $1,100,105
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December 31, 2017 

Asset Type Within 1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years After 10 years Total

CMBS(1) $ 285,982 $544,278 $123,239 $ — $953,499
CMBS interest-only(1) 537 112,534 — — 113,071
GNMA interest-only(2) 76 3,906 484 11 4,477
Agency securities(1) — 728 — — 728
GNMA permanent securities(1) — 1,797 32,945 — 34,742
Total $ 286,595 $663,243 $156,668 $ 11 $1,106,517

(1)
CMBS, CMBS interest-only securities, Agency securities, and GNMA permanent securities are classified as
available-for-sale and reported at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in the current period in other
comprehensive income.

(2)Agency interest-only securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in current periodearnings.

There were $1.0 million and $0.4 million of realized losses on securities recorded as other than temporary
impairments for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The determination of whether a
security is other-than-temporarily impaired involves judgments and assumptions based on subjective and objective
factors. Consideration is given to (i) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than
amortized cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term prospects of recovery in fair value of the security, and (iii)
the Company’s intent to sell the security and whether it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to
sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. The Company has no intention to sell the securities before
recovery of its amortized cost basis. For cash flow statement purposes, all receipts of interest from interest-only real
estate securities are treated as part of cash flows from operations.
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6. REAL ESTATE AND RELATED LEASE INTANGIBLES, NET 

The following tables present additional detail related to our real estate portfolio ($ in thousands):

March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Land $173,811 $ 213,992
Building 793,504 789,622
In-place leases and other intangibles 179,418 189,490
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (165,874 ) (161,063 )
Real estate and related lease intangibles, net $980,859 $ 1,032,041

Below market lease intangibles, net (other liabilities) $(42,000 ) $ (42,607 )

The following table presents depreciation and amortization expense on real estate recorded by the Company ($ in
thousands):

Three Months
Ended March
31,
2018 2017

Depreciation expense (1) $7,786 $5,720
Amortization expense 3,018 2,849
Total real estate depreciation and amortization expense $10,804 $8,569

(1)Depreciation expense on the consolidated statements of income also includes $19 thousand and $23 thousand ofdepreciation on corporate fixed assets for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company’s intangible assets are comprised of in-place leases, favorable leases compared to market leases and
other intangibles. At March 31, 2018, gross intangible assets totaled $179.4 million with total accumulated
amortization of $61.1 million, resulting in net intangible assets of $118.3 million, including $6.1 million of
unamortized favorable lease intangibles which are included in real estate and related lease intangibles, net on the
consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2017, gross intangible assets totaled $189.5 million with total
accumulated amortization of $60.9 million, resulting in net intangible assets of $128.6 million, including $8.9 million
of unamortized favorable lease intangibles which are included in real estate and related lease intangibles, net on the
consolidated balance sheets. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded a net
reduction in operating lease income of $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively, for amortization of above market
lease intangibles acquired. For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded a net
increase in operating lease income of $0.6 million and $0.3 million, for amortization of below market lease intangibles
acquired, respectively.

The following table presents expected amortization expense during the next five years and thereafter related to the
acquired in-place lease intangibles for property owned as of March 31, 2018 ($ in thousands):
Period Ending December 31, Amount

2018 (last 9 months) $7,049
2019 9,389
2020 9,249
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2021 8,637
2022 6,359
Thereafter 72,296
Total $112,979
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There were $0.7 million and $0.9 million of unbilled rent receivables included in other assets on the consolidated
balance sheets as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

There was unencumbered real estate of $96.5 million and $128.7 million as of March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively.

The following is a schedule of non-cancellable, contractual, future minimum rent under leases (excluding property
operating expenses paid directly by tenant under net leases or rent escalations under other leases from tenants) at
March 31, 2018 ($ in thousands):

Period Ending December 31, Amount

2018 (last 9 months) $75,456
2019 95,873
2020 88,398
2021 86,142
2022 80,847
Thereafter 564,298
Total $991,014

Acquisitions

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company acquired the following property ($ in thousands):

Acquisition Date Type Primary Location(s) PurchasePrice Ownership Interest (1)

March 2018 Diversified Lithia Springs, GA $24,466 70.6%
Total $24,466

(1)Property was consolidated as of acquisition date.

On October 1, 2016, the Company early adopted ASU 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the
Definition of a Business (“ASU 2017-01”). As a result of this adoption, acquisitions of real estate may not meet the
revised definition of a business and may be treated as asset acquisitions rather than business combinations. The
measurement of assets and liabilities acquired will no longer be recorded at fair value and the Company will now
allocate purchase consideration based on relative fair values. Real estate acquisition costs which are no longer
expensed as incurred, will be capitalized as a component of the cost of the assets acquired. During the three months
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, all acquisitions were determined to be asset acquisitions.

The purchase prices were allocated to the asset acquisitions during the three months ended March 31, 2018, as follows
($ in thousands):

Purchase
Price
Allocation

Land $ 2,939
Building 21,527
Intangibles(1) —
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Below Market Lease Intangibles —
Total purchase price $ 24,466

(1)No intangibles allocated to purchase price as property was acquired vacant.
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The Company recorded no revenues from its 2018 acquisitions for the three months ended March 31, 2018. The
Company recorded $(0.3) million in earnings (losses) from its 2018 acquisitions for the three months ended March 31,
2018, which is included in its consolidated statements of income.

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company acquired the following properties ($ in thousands):

Acquisition Date Type Primary Location(s) PurchasePrice Ownership Interest (1)

February 2017 Net Lease Carmi, IL $ 1,411 100.0%
February 2017 Net Lease Peoria, IL 1,183 100.0%
March 2017 Net Lease Ridgedale, MO 1,298 100.0%

Total $ 3,892

(1)Properties were consolidated as of acquisition date.

The purchase prices were allocated to the asset acquisitions during the three months ended March 31, 2017, as follows
($ in thousands):

Purchase
Price
Allocation

Land $ 744
Building 2,777
Intangibles 559
Below Market Lease Intangibles (188 )
Total purchase price $ 3,892

The weighted average amortization period for intangible assets acquired during the three months ended March 31,
2017 was 34.2 years. The Company recorded $36 thousand in revenues from its 2017 acquisitions for the three
months ended March 31, 2017, which is included in its consolidated statements of income. The Company recorded
$36 thousand in earnings (losses) from its 2017 acquisitions for the three months ended March 31, 2017, which is
included in its consolidated statements of income.

Sales

The Company sold the following properties during the three months ended March 31, 2018 ($ in thousands):

Sales Date Type Primary Location(s) Net SalesProceeds

Net
Book
Value

Realized
Gain/(Loss) Properties UnitsSold

Units
Remaining

Various Condominium Las Vegas, NV $ 1,811 $732 $ 1,079 — 2 11
Various Condominium Miami, FL 2,263 1,792 471 — 8 40
March 2018 Diversified El Monte, CA 71,807 52,610 19,197 1 — —
March 2018 Diversified Richmond, VA 21,632 11,370 10,262 1 — —
Totals $ 97,513 $66,504 $ 31,009
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The Company sold the following properties during the three months ended March 31, 2017 ($ in thousands):

Sales Date Type Primary Location(s) Net SalesProceeds

Net
Book
Value

Realized
Gain/(Loss) Properties UnitsSold

Units
Remaining

Various Condominium Las Vegas, NV $ 4,200 $2,320 $ 1,880 — 12 47
Various Condominium Miami, FL 2,125 1,674 451 — 6 82
Totals $ 6,325 $3,994 $ 2,331

7. INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURES 

As of March 31, 2018, the Company had an aggregate investment of $34.6 million in its equity method joint ventures
with unaffiliated third parties.

The following is a summary of the Company’s investments in unconsolidated joint ventures, which we account for
using the equity method, as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 ($ in thousands):

Entity March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Grace Lake JV, LLC $ 3,925 $ 4,908
24 Second Avenue Holdings LLC 30,639 30,533
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $ 34,564 $ 35,441

The following is a summary of the Company’s allocated earnings (losses) based on its ownership interests from
investment in unconsolidated joint ventures for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 ($ in thousands):

Three
Months
Ended March
31,

Entity 2018 2017

Grace Lake JV, LLC $267 $238
24 Second Avenue Holdings LLC (215 ) (312 )
Earnings (loss) from investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $52 $(74 )

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company received a $1.3 million distribution from its investment
in Grace Lake JV, LLC.

Grace Lake JV, LLC

In connection with the origination of a loan in April 2012, the Company received a 25% equity kicker with the right to
convert upon a capital event. On March 22, 2013, the loan was refinanced, and the Company converted its interest into
a 19% limited liability company membership interest in Grace Lake JV, LLC (“Grace Lake LLC”), which holds an
investment in an office building complex. After taking into account the preferred return of 8.25% and the return of all
equity remaining in the property to the Company’s operating partner, the Company is entitled to 25% of the
distribution of all excess cash flows and all disposition proceeds upon any sale. The Company is not legally required
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The Company’s investment in Grace Lake LLC is an unconsolidated joint venture, which is a VIE for which the
Company is not the primary beneficiary. This joint venture was deemed to be a VIE primarily based on the fact there
are disproportionate voting and economic rights within the joint venture. The Company determined that it was not the
primary beneficiary of this VIE based on the fact that the Company has a passive investment and no control of this
entity and therefore does not have controlling financial interests in this VIE. The Company’s maximum exposure to
loss is limited to its investment in the VIE. The Company has not provided financial support to this VIE that it was not
previously contractually required to provide.

24 Second Avenue Holdings LLC

On August 7, 2015, the Company entered into a joint venture, 24 Second Avenue Holdings LLC (“24 Second Avenue”),
with an operating partner to invest in a ground-up condominium construction and development project located at 24
Second Avenue, New York, NY. The Company accounts for its interest in 24 Second Avenue using the equity method
of accounting as its joint venture partner is the managing member of 24 Second Avenue and has substantive
participating rights. The Company contributed $31.1 million for a 73.8% interest, with the operating partner holding
the remaining 26.2% interest. The Company is entitled to income allocations and distributions based upon its
membership interest of 73.8% until the Company achieves a 1.70x profit multiple, after which, income is allocated
and distributed 50% to the Company and 50% to the operating partner.

During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 the Company recorded $0.2 million and $0.3 million,
respectively, in expenses, which is recorded in earnings (loss) from investment in unconsolidated joint ventures in the
consolidated statements of income. The Company capitalizes interest related to the cost of its investment, as 24
Second Avenue has activities in progress necessary to construct and ultimately sell condominium units. During the
three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company capitalized $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of
interest expense, using a weighted average interest rate, which is recorded in investment in unconsolidated joint
ventures in the consolidated balance sheets.

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, 24 Second Avenue had $39.0 million and $36.5 million, respectively,
of loans payable to third party lenders. As of December 31, 2016, the previously existing building had been
demolished and the site was cleared with all supportive excavation work completed, and we are anticipating
completion of the new construction in 2018. 24 Second Avenue consists of 31 residential condominium units and one
commercial condominium unit. As of March 31, 2018, 11 residential condominium units were under contract for sale
for $30.4 million in sales proceeds. As of March 31, 2018, the Company is holding a 10.0% deposit on each sales
contract. Our operating partner entered into a construction loan in the amount of $50.5 million to fund the completion
of the project. As of March 31, 2018, draws of $39.0 million have been taken against the construction loan. The
Company has no remaining capital commitment to our operating partner.

The Company’s investment in 24 Second Avenue is an unconsolidated joint venture, which is a VIE for which the
Company is not the primary beneficiary. This joint venture was deemed to be a VIE primarily based on the fact there
are disproportionate voting and economic rights within the joint venture. The Company determined that it was not the
primary beneficiary of this VIE based on the fact that the Company has shared control of this entity along with the
entity’s partner and therefore does not have controlling financial interests in this VIE. The Company’s maximum
exposure to loss is limited to its investment in the VIE. The Company has not provided financial support to this VIE
that it was not previously contractually required to provide. In general, future costs of development not financed
through a third party will be funded with capital contributions from the Company and its outside partner in accordance
with their respective ownership percentages.
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Combined Summary Financial Information for Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

The following is a summary of the combined financial position of the unconsolidated joint ventures in which the
Company had investment interests as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 ($ in thousands):

March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Total assets $153,122 $ 154,979
Total liabilities 110,291 108,119
Partners’/members’ capital$42,831 $ 46,860

The following is a summary of the combined results from operations of the unconsolidated joint ventures for the
period in which the Company had investment interests during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017($ in
thousands):

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017

Total revenues $4,349 $3,791
Total expenses 3,572 5,798
Net income (loss) $777 $(2,007)
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8. DEBT OBLIGATIONS, NET 

The details of the Company’s debt obligations at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as follows ($ in
thousands):

March 31, 2018 

Debt
Obligations

Committed
Financing

Debt
Obligations
Outstanding

Committed
but
Unfunded

Interest
Rate at
March 31,
2018(1)

Current
Term
Maturity

Remaining
Extension
Options

Eligible
Collateral

Carrying
Amount of
Collateral

Fair Value
of
Collateral

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

$600,000 $212,023 $387,977  3.53% -
4.28% 10/1/2020 (2) (3) $348,473 $347,019

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

450,000 154,077 295,923  3.93% -
4.78% 5/24/2018 (4) (3) 280,892 282,231

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

300,000 84,687 215,313  3.78% -
5.03% 4/7/2019 (5) (6) 137,421 137,983

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

200,000 80,536 119,464  4.31% -
4.81% 2/29/2020 (7) (8) 122,123 122,099

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

100,000 19,200 80,800 4.28% 6/28/2019 N/A (3) 25,371 25,371

Total
Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facilities

1,650,000 550,523 1,099,477 914,280 914,703

Committed
Securities
Repurchase
Facility

400,000 98,762 301,238  2.36% -
2.56% 9/30/2019  N/A (9) 119,600 119,600

Uncommitted
Securities
Repurchase
Facility

 N/A (10) 105,092  N/A (10)  2.39% -
3.69%

4/2018 -
6/2018  N/A (9) 119,969 119,969 (11)(12)

Total
Repurchase
Facilities

2,050,000 754,377 1,400,715 1,153,849 1,154,272

Revolving
Credit

241,430 — 241,430  NA 2/11/2019 (13)  N/A (14)  N/A (14)  N/A (14)
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Facility
Mortgage
Loan
Financing

683,487 683,487 —   4.25% -
6.75%

2020 -
2028  N/A (15) 895,786 1,056,848 (16)

CLO Debt 683,095 683,095 (17)—  2.67% -
5.39% 2021-2034 N/A (18) 881,719 882,114

Participation
Financing -
Mortgage
Loan
Receivable

2,815 2,815 — 17.00% 6/6/2018   N/A (3) 2,815 2,815

Borrowings
from the
FHLB

1,933,522 1,348,000 585,522   0.87% -
2.74%

2018 -
2024  N/A (19) 1,827,338 1,830,545 (20)

Senior
Unsecured
Notes

1,166,201 1,152,834 (21)—  5.250% -
5.875%

2021 -
2025  N/A  N/A (22)  N/A (22)  N/A (22)

Total Debt
Obligations $6,760,550 $4,624,608 $2,227,667 $4,761,507 $4,926,594

(1)March 2018 LIBOR rates are used to calculate interest rates for floating rate debt.

(2)Two additional 12-month periods at Company’s option. No new advances are permitted after the initial maturitydate.

(3)First mortgage commercial real estate loans and senior and pari passu interests therein. It does not include the realestate collateralizing such loans.
(4)Three additional 12-month periods at Company’s option.
(5)One additional 364-day periods at Company’s option and one additional 364-day period with Bank’s consent.

(6)First mortgage and mezzanine commercial real estate loans. It does not include the real estate collateralizing suchloans.
(7)One additional 12-month extension period and two additional 6-month extension periods at Company’s option.
(8)First mortgage commercial real estate loans. It does not include the real estate collateralizing such loans.

(9) Commercial real estate securities. It does not include the real estate collateralizing such
securities.

(10)Represents uncommitted securities repurchase facilities for which there is no committed amount subject to futureadvances.

(11)As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities which were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitizationtrust are restricted. Includes $2.6 million of restricted securities.

(12)
Includes $6.0 million of securities purchased in the secondary market of the Company’s October 2017 CLO
issuance. These securities are not included in real estate securities, available-for-sale but were rather considered a
retirement of CLO Debt.

(13)Two additional 12-month periods at Company’s option.
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(14)The obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiariesand secured by equity pledges in certain Company subsidiaries.
(15)Real estate.

(16) Using undepreciated carrying value of commercial real estate to approximate fair
value.

(17)Presented net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $5.4 million at March 31, 2018.

(18)First mortgage commercial real estate loans and pari passu interests therein. It does not include the real estatecollateralizing such loans.

(19)First mortgage commercial real estate loans and investment grade commercial real estate securities. It does notinclude the real estate collateralizing such loans and securities.

(20)As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities which were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitizationtrust are restricted. Includes $9.9 million of restricted securities. 
(21)Presented net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $13.4 million at March 31, 2018.
(22)The obligations under the senior unsecured notes are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

December 31, 2017

Debt
Obligations

Committed
Financing

Debt
Obligations
Outstanding

Committed
but
Unfunded

Interest Rate
at
December 31,
2017(1)

Current
Term
Maturity

Remaining
Extension
Options

Eligible
Collateral

Carrying
Amount of
Collateral

Fair Value
of
Collateral

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

$600,000 $120,493 $479,507  3.23% -
3.98% 10/1/2020 (2) (3) $160,031 $159,568

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

450,000 183,111 266,889  3.63% -
4.48% 5/24/2018 (4) (3) 333,647 335,076

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

300,000 63,007 236,993  3.73% -
4.73% 4/10/2018 (5) (6) 125,379 125,975

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

200,000 32,042 167,958  4.25% -
4.50% 2/29/2020 (7) (8) 48,045 48,045

Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facility

100,000 — 100,000 NA 6/28/2019 N/A (3) — —

Total
Committed
Loan
Repurchase
Facilities

1,650,000 398,653 1,251,347 667,102 668,664

Committed
Securities
Repurchase

400,000 — 400,000  NA 9/30/2019  N/A (9) — —
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Facility
Uncommitted
Securities
Repurchase
Facility

 N/A (10) 74,757  N/A (10)   1.65% -
3.31%

1/2018 -
3/2018  N/A (9) 86,322 86,322 (11)

Total
Repurchase
Facilities

2,050,000 473,410 1,651,347 753,424 754,986

Revolving
Credit
Facility

241,430 — 241,430  NA 2/11/2018 (4)  N/A (12)   N/A (14)   N/A (14)

Mortgage
Loan
Financing

692,696 692,696 —   4.25% -
6.75%

2018 -
2027  N/A (13) 911,034 1,066,708 (14)

CLO Debt 688,479 688,479 (15)—  2.36% -
5.08% 2021-2034 N/A (16) 880,385 881,576

Participation
Financing -
Mortgage
Loan
Receivable

3,107 3,107 — 17.00% 6/6/2018   N/A (3) 3,107 3,107

Borrowings
from the
FHLB

2,000,000 1,370,000 630,000   0.87% -
2.74%

2018 -
2024  N/A (17) 1,777,597 1,783,210 (18)

Senior
Unsecured
Notes

1,166,201 1,152,134 (19)—  5.250% -
5.875%

2021 -
2025  N/A  N/A (20)  N/A (20)  N/A (20)

Total Debt
Obligations $6,841,913 $4,379,826 $2,522,777 $4,325,547 $4,489,587

(1)December 31, 2017 LIBOR rates are used to calculate interest rates for floating rate debt.

(2)Two additional 12-month periods at Company’s option. No new advances are permitted after the initial maturitydate.

(3)First mortgage commercial real estate loans and senior and pari passu interests therein. It does not include the realestate collateralizing such loans.
(4)Three additional 12-month periods at Company’s option.
(5)Two additional 364-day periods at Company’s option and one additional 364-day period with Bank’s consent.

(6)First mortgage and mezzanine commercial real estate loans. It does not include the real estate collateralizing suchloans.
(7)One additional 12-month extension period and two additional 6-month extension periods at Company’s option.
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(8)First mortgage commercial real estate loans. It does not include the real estate collateralizing such loans.

(9) Commercial real estate securities. It does not include the real estate collateralizing such
securities.

(10)Represents uncommitted securities repurchase facilities for which there is no committed amount subject to futureadvances.

(11)As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities which were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitizationtrust are restricted. Includes $26.7 million of restricted securities. 

(12)The obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiariesand secured by equity pledges in certain Company subsidiaries.
(13)Real estate.

(14) Using undepreciated carrying value of commercial real estate to approximate fair
value.

(15)Presented net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $6.0 million at December 31, 2017.

(16)First mortgage commercial real estate loans and pari passu interests therein. It does not include the real estatecollateralizing such loans.

(17)First mortgage commercial real estate loans and investment grade commercial real estate securities. It does notinclude the real estate collateralizing such loans and securities.

(18)As more fully described in Note 4, certain securities which were purchased from the LCCM LC-26 securitizationtrust are restricted. Includes $10.1 million of restricted securities. 
(19)Presented net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $14.1 million at December 31, 2017.
(20)The obligations under the senior unsecured notes are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

Committed Loan and Securities Repurchase Facilities

The Company has entered into multiple committed master repurchase agreements in order to finance its lending
activities. The Company has entered into five committed master repurchase agreements, as outlined in the March 31,
2018 table above, totaling $1.7 billion of credit capacity. Assets pledged as collateral under these facilities are limited
to whole mortgage loans or participation interests in mortgage loans collateralized by first liens on commercial
properties and mezzanine debt. The Company also has a term master repurchase agreement with a major U.S. bank to
finance CMBS totaling $400.0 million. The Company’s repurchase facilities include covenants covering net worth
requirements, minimum liquidity levels, maximum leverage ratios, and minimum fixed charge coverage ratios. The
Company believes it was in compliance with all covenants as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

The Company has the option to extend some of the current facilities subject to a number of conditions, including
satisfaction of certain notice requirements, no event of default exists, and no margin deficit exists, all as defined in the
repurchase facility agreements. The lenders have sole discretion with respect to the inclusion of collateral in these
facilities, to determine the market value of the collateral on a daily basis, to be exercised on a good faith basis, and
have the right in certain cases to require additional collateral, a full and/or partial repayment of the facilities (margin
call), or a reduction in unused availability under the facilities, sufficient to rebalance the facilities if the estimated
market value of the included collateral declines.

On February 22, 2017, the Company exercised a one year extension option on one of its committed loan repurchase
facilities. In connection with this extension, the Company elected to reduce the maximum capacity of the facility to
$300.0 million. In addition, on March 21, 2017, the Company amended this committed loan repurchase facility to,
among other things, add one additional 364-day extension period at Company’s option and one additional 364-day
extension period permitted with lender’s consent.

On March 1, 2017, the Company executed an amendment and extension of one of its credit facilities with a major
banking institution, providing for, among other things, the extension of the maximum term of the facility to February
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28, 2022 and increasing the maximum funding capacity to $200.0 million.

On May 1, 2017, the Company executed an amendment to one of its credit facilities with a major banking institution
to, among other things, extend the maximum term by an additional year to May 24, 2021.

On September 29, 2017, the Company executed an amendment to its committed securities repurchase facility with a
major banking institution, providing for, among other things, the extension of the maximum term of the facility to
September 30, 2019.

Effective September 30, 2017, the Company executed an amendment of one of its committed loan repurchase
facilities with a major banking institution, providing for, among other things, the extension of the maximum term of
the facility to October 1, 2022, inclusive of two 12-month extension options, and to extend of the final date to obtain
new advances under the facility to October 1, 2020.
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On January 4, 2018, the Company executed an amendment to its committed loan repurchase facility with a major
banking institution, providing for, among other things, the extension of the maximum term of the facility to April 7,
2019.

As of March 31, 2018, we had repurchase agreements with eight counterparties, with total debt obligations
outstanding of $754.4 million. As of March 31, 2018, two counterparties, Deutsche Bank and Wells Fargo, held
collateral that exceeded the amounts borrowed under the related repurchase agreements by more than $75.2 million, or
5% of our total equity. As of March 31, 2018, the weighted average haircut, or the percent of collateral value in excess
of the loan amount, under our repurchase agreements was 34.6%. There have been no significant fluctuations in
haircuts across asset classes on our repurchase facilities.

Revolving Credit Facility

On February 11, 2014, the Company entered into a revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”), which was
subsequently amended on February 26, 2016, March 1, 2017, March 23, 2017, September 29, 2017 and October 27,
2017, to add additional banks to our syndicate, add two additional one-year extension options and increase its
maximum funding capacity. The Revolving Credit Facility provides for an aggregate maximum borrowing amount of
$241.4 million, including a $25.0 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit. The Revolving Credit Facility is
available on a revolving basis to finance the Company’s working capital needs and for general corporate purposes. The
Revolving Credit Facility has a maturity date of February 11, 2019, which may be extended by two 12-month periods
subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions, including the absence of default. Interest on the Revolving Credit
Facility is one-month LIBOR plus 3.50% per annum payable monthly in arrears.

The obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.
The Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a pledge of the shares of (or other ownership or equity interests in) certain
subsidiaries to the extent the pledge is not restricted under existing regulations, law or contractual obligations.

LCFH is subject to customary affirmative covenants and negative covenants, including limitations on the incurrence
of additional debt, liens, restricted payments, sales of assets and affiliate transactions. In addition, under the Revolving
Credit Facility, LCFH is required to comply with financial covenants relating to minimum net worth, maximum
leverage, minimum liquidity, and minimum fixed charge coverage, consistent with our other credit facilities. The
Company’s ability to borrow under the Revolving Credit Facility is dependent on, among other things, LCFH’s
compliance with the financial covenants. The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary events of default,
including non-payment of principal or interest, fees or other amounts, failure to perform or observe covenants,
cross-default to other indebtedness, the rendering of judgments against the Company or certain of our subsidiaries to
pay certain amounts of money and certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency.

Debt Issuance Costs

As discussed in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies in the Annual Report, the Company considers its committed
loan master repurchase facilities and Revolving Credit Facility to be revolving debt arrangements. As such, the
Company continues to defer and present costs associated with these facilities as an asset, subsequently amortizing
those costs ratably over the term of each revolving debt arrangement. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
the amount of unamortized costs relating to such facilities are $7.4 million and $7.8 million, respectively, and are
included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Uncommitted Securities Repurchase Facilities
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The Company has also entered into multiple master repurchase agreements with several counterparties collateralized
by real estate securities. The borrowings under these agreements have typical advance rates between 75% and 95% of
the fair value of collateral.
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Mortgage Loan Financing

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company executed three term debt agreements to finance
properties in its real estate portfolio. During the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company did not execute
any term debt agreements to finance properties in its real estate portfolio. These non-recourse debt agreements provide
for fixed rate financing at rates, ranging from 4.25% to 6.75%, maturing between 2020 - 2028 as of March 31, 2018.
These loans have carrying amounts of $683.5 million and $692.7 million, net of unamortized premiums of $6.3
million and $6.6 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, representing proceeds received
upon financing greater than the contractual amounts due under these agreements. The premiums are being amortized
over the remaining life of the respective debt instruments using the effective interest method. The Company recorded
$0.3 million and $0.2 million of premium amortization, which decreased interest expense, for the three months ended
March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The loans are collateralized by real estate and related lease intangibles, net, of
$895.8 million and $911.0 million as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

CLO Debt

The Company completed its inaugural collateralized loan obligation (“CLO”) issuances in the two transactions
described below. As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had a total of $683.1 million and
$688.5 million, respectively, of floating rate, non-recourse CLO debt included in debt obligations on its consolidated
balance sheets. Unamortized debt issuance costs of $5.4 million and $6.0 million are included in CLO Debt as of
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, in accordance with GAAP. As of March 31, 2018, the CLO
debt has interest rates of 2.67% to 5.39% (with a weighted average of 3.64%). As of March 31, 2018, collateral for the
CLO debt comprised $881.7 million of first mortgage commercial mortgage real estate loans.

On October 17, 2017, a consolidated subsidiary of the Company consummated a securitization of floating-rate
commercial mortgage loans through a static CLO structure. Over $456.9 million of balance sheet loans (“Contributed
Loans”) were contributed into the CLO. Certain of the Contributed Loans have future funding components that were
not contributed to the CLO and that are retained by a consolidated subsidiary of the Company in the form of a
participation interest or separate note. However, for a limited period of time, to the extent loans in the CLO are repaid,
the CLO may acquire portions of the future fundings from the Company’s consolidated subsidiary. A consolidated
subsidiary of the Company retained an approximately 18.5% interest in the CLO by retaining the most subordinate
classes of notes issued by the CLO, retains control over major decisions made with respect to the administration of the
Contributed Loans and appoints the special servicer under the CLO. The CLO is a VIE and the Company is the
primary beneficiary and, therefore, consolidates the VIE - See Note 3.

On December 21, 2017, a subsidiary of the Company consummated a securitization of fixed and floating-rate
commercial mortgage loans through a static CLO structure. Over $431.5 million of Contributed Loans were
contributed into the CLO. Certain of the Contributed Loans have future funding components that were not contributed
to the CLO and that are retained by a consolidated subsidiary of the Company in the form of a participation interest or
separate note. However, for a limited period of time, to the extent loans in the CLO are repaid, the CLO may acquire
portions of the future fundings from the Company’s consolidated subsidiary. A consolidated subsidiary of the
Company retained an approximately 25% interest in the CLO by retaining the most subordinate classes of notes issued
by the CLO, retains control over major decisions made with respect to the administration of the Contributed Loans
and appoints the special servicer under the CLO. The CLO is a VIE and the Company is the primary beneficiary and,
therefore, consolidates the VIE - See Note 3.

Participation Financing - Mortgage Loan Receivable
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During the three months ended March 31, 2016, the Company sold a participating interest in a first mortgage loan
receivable to a third party. The sales proceeds of $4.0 million are considered non-recourse secured borrowings and are
recognized in debt obligations on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets with $2.8 million outstanding as of
March 31, 2018. The Company recorded $0.1 million of interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2018.
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Borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”)

On July 11, 2012, Tuebor Captive Insurance Company LLC (“Tuebor”), a consolidated subsidiary of the Company,
became a member of the FHLB and subsequently drew its first secured funding advances from the FHLB. On
December 6, 2017, Tuebor’s advance limit was updated by the FHLB to the lowest of a Set Dollar Limit ($2.0 billion),
40% of Tuebor’s total assets or 150% of the Company’s total equity. Beginning April 1, 2020 through December 31,
2020, the Set Dollar Limit will be $1.5 billion. Beginning January 1, 2021 through February 19, 2021, the Set Dollar
Limit will be $750.0 million. Tuebor is well-positioned to meet its obligations and pay down its advances in
accordance with the scheduled reduction in the Set Dollar Limit, which remains subject to revision by the FHLB or as
a result of any future changes in applicable regulations. 

As of March 31, 2018, Tuebor had $1.3 billion of borrowings outstanding (with an additional $585.5 million of
committed term financing available from the FHLB), with terms of overnight to six years (with a weighted average of
2.4 years), interest rates of 0.87% to 2.74% (with a weighted average of 1.82%), and advance rates of 52.0% to 95.2%
of the collateral. As of March 31, 2018, collateral for the borrowings was comprised of $837.2 million of CMBS and
U.S. Agency Securities and $990.1 million of first mortgage commercial real estate loans.

As of December 31, 2017, Tuebor had $1.4 billion of borrowings outstanding (with an additional $630.0 million of
committed term financing available from the FHLB), with terms of overnight to six years (with a weighted average of
2.5 years), interest rates of 0.87% to 2.74% (with a weighted average of 1.61%), and advance rates of 49.6% to 100%
of the collateral. As of December 31, 2017, collateral for the borrowings was comprised of $861.7 million of CMBS
and U.S. Agency Securities and $915.9 million of first mortgage commercial real estate loans.

Tuebor is subject to state regulations which require that dividends (including dividends to the Company as its parent)
may only be made with regulatory approval. However, there can be no assurance that we would obtain such approval
if sought. Largely as a result of this restriction, approximately $1.3 billion of the member’s capital was restricted from
transfer via dividend to Tuebor’s parent without prior approval of state insurance regulators at March 31, 2018. To
facilitate intercompany cash funding of operations and investments, Tuebor and its parent maintain
regulator-approved intercompany borrowing/lending agreements.

Effective February 19, 2016, the Federal Housing Finance Agency (the “FHFA’’), regulator of the FHLB, adopted a final
rule amending its regulation regarding the eligibility of captive insurance companies for FHLB membership.
According to the final rule, Ladder’s captive insurance company subsidiary, Tuebor may remain as a member of the
FHLB through February 19, 2021 (the “Transition Period”). During the Transition Period, Tuebor is eligible to continue
to draw new additional advances, extend the maturities of existing advances, and pay off outstanding advances on the
same terms as non-captive insurance company FHLB members with the following two exceptions:

1.New advances (including any existing advances that are extended during the Transition Period) will have maturitydates on or before February 19, 2021; and

2.The FHLB will make new advances to Tuebor subject to a requirement that Tuebor’s total outstanding advances donot exceed 40% of Tuebor’s total assets.

Tuebor has executed new advances since the effective date of the new rule in the ordinary course of business.

FHLB advances amounted to 29.1% of the Company’s outstanding debt obligations as of March 31, 2018. The
Company does not anticipate that the FHFA’s final regulation will materially impact its operations as it will continue
to access FHLB advances during the five-year Transition Period.
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There is no assurance that the FHFA or the FHLB will not take actions that could adversely impact Tuebor’s
membership in the FHLB and continuing access to new or existing advances prior to February 19, 2021.
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Senior Unsecured Notes
LCFH issued the 2025 Notes, the 2022 Notes, the 2021 Notes and the 2017 Notes (each as defined below, and
collectively, the “Notes”) with Ladder Capital Finance Corporation (“LCFC”), as co-issuers on a joint and several basis.
LCFC is a 100% owned finance subsidiary of Series TRS of LCFH with no assets, operations, revenues or cash flows
other than those related to the issuance, administration and repayment of the Notes. The Company and certain
subsidiaries of LCFH currently guarantee the obligations under the Notes and the indenture. The Company is the
general partner of LCFH and, through LCFH and its subsidiaries, operates the Ladder Capital business. As of
March 31, 2018, the Company has a 88.0% economic and voting interest in LCFH and controls the management of
LCFH as a result of its ability to appoint board members. Accordingly, the Company consolidates the financial results
of LCFH and records noncontrolling interest for the economic interest in LCFH held by the Continuing LCFH
Limited Partners. In addition, the Company, through certain subsidiaries which are treated as TRSs, is indirectly
subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes. Other than the noncontrolling interest in the Operating
Partnership and federal, state and local income taxes, there are no material differences between the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and LCFH’s consolidated financial statements. The Company believes it was in
compliance with all covenants of the Notes as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

Unamortized debt issuance costs of $13.4 million and $14.1 million are included in senior unsecured notes as of
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, in accordance with GAAP.

2017 Notes

On September 19, 2012, LCFH issued $325.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior notes due
October 1, 2017 (the “2017 Notes”). The 2017 Notes required interest payments semi-annually in cash in arrears on
April 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning on September 19, 2012. The 2017 Notes were unsecured and subject to
incurrence-based covenants, including limitations on the incurrence of additional debt, restricted payments, liens, sales
of assets, affiliate transactions and other covenants typical for financings of this type. At any time on or after April 1,
2017, the 2017 Notes were redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, upon not less than 30 nor
more than 60 days’ notice, without penalty. On November 5, 2014, the board of directors authorized the Company to
make up to $325.0 million in repurchases of the 2017 Notes from time to time without further approval.

On December 17, 2014, the Company retired $5.4 million of principal of the 2017 Notes for a repurchase price of $5.6
million recognizing a $0.2 million loss on extinguishment of debt. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Company retired $21.9 million of principal of the 2017 Notes for a repurchase price of $21.4 million, recognizing a
$0.3 million net gain on extinguishment of debt after recognizing $(0.2) million of unamortized debt issuance costs
associated with the retired debt.

On March 1, 2017, the Company delivered a notice of conditional full redemption to holders of the 2017 Notes,
pursuant to which the Company redeemed all outstanding 2017 Notes at 100% of the principal amount thereof (plus
any accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date) as of April 1, 2017. The redemption was conditional on the
completion by the Company of a senior notes offering with gross proceeds of not less than $500 million. The
Company’s offering of the 2022 Notes, described below, satisfied this condition. On April 3, 2017, the Company
retired the remaining $297.7 million of principal of the 2017 Notes for a repurchase price of $297.7 million,
recognizing a $53,547 net loss on extinguishment of debt after recognizing $(22,847) of unamortized debt issuance
costs associated with the retired debt.

2021 Notes

On August 1, 2014, LCFH issued $300.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.875% senior notes due August 1,
2021 (the “2021 Notes”). The 2021 Notes require interest payments semi-annually in cash in arrears on February 1 and
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August 1 of each year, beginning on February 1, 2015. The 2021 Notes will mature on August 1, 2021. The 2021
Notes are unsecured and are subject to incurrence-based covenants, including limitations on the incurrence of
additional debt, restricted payments, liens, sales of assets, affiliate transactions and other covenants typical for
financings of this type. At any time on or after August 1, 2020, the 2021 Notes are redeemable at the option of the
Company, in whole or in part, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice, without penalty. On February 24,
2016, the board of directors authorized the Company to make up to $100.0 million in repurchases of the 2021 Notes
from time to time without further approval.
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company retired $33.8 million of principal of the 2021 Notes for a
repurchase price of $28.2 million, recognizing a $5.1 million net gain on extinguishment of debt after recognizing
$(0.4) million of unamortized debt issuance costs associated with the retired debt. As of March 31, 2018, the
remaining $266.2 million in aggregate principal amount of the 2021 Notes is due August 1, 2021.

2022 Notes

On March 16, 2017, LCFH issued $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.250% senior notes due March 15,
2022 (the “2022 Notes”). The 2022 Notes require interest payments semi-annually in cash in arrears on March 15 and
September 15 of each year, beginning on September 15, 2017. The 2022 Notes will mature on March 15, 2022. The
2022 Notes are unsecured and are subject to an unencumbered assets to unsecured debt covenant. At any time on or
after September 15, 2021, the 2022 Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, upon not
less than 15 nor more than 60 days’ notice, without penalty.

2025 Notes

On September 25, 2017, LCFH issued $400.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.250% senior notes due
October 1, 2025 (the “2025 Notes”). The 2025 Notes require interest payments semi-annually in cash in arrears on April
1 and October 1 of each year, beginning on April 1, 2018. The 2025 Notes will mature on October 1, 2025. The 2025
Notes are unsecured and are subject to an unencumbered assets to unsecured debt covenant. The Company may
redeem the 2025 Notes, in whole, at any time, or from time to time, prior to their stated maturity. The 2025 Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, upon not less than 15 nor more than 60 days’ notice, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2025 Notes plus the Applicable Premium (as defined in
the indenture governing the 2025 Notes) as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date.

Combined Maturity of Debt Obligations

The following schedule reflects the Company’s contractual payments under all borrowings by maturity ($ in
thousands):

Period ending December 31, Borrowings by
Maturity(1)

2018 (last 9 months) $ 1,076,682
2019 474,749
2020 552,290
2021 612,634
2022 656,768
Thereafter 1,263,918
Subtotal $ 4,637,041
Debt issuance costs included in senior unsecured notes (13,366 )
Debt issuance costs included in CLO debt (5,373 )
Premiums included in mortgage loan financing(2) 6,306
Total 4,624,608

(1)
Contractual payments under current maturities, some of which are subject to extensions. The maturities listed
above for 2018 relate to debt obligations that are subject to existing Company controlled extension options for one
or more additional one-year periods or could be refinanced by other existing facilities as of March 31, 2018.

(2)
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Deferred gains on intercompany loans, secured by our own real estate, sold into securitizations. Premium is
amortized as a reduction to interest expense.

The Company’s debt facilities are subject to covenants which require the Company to maintain a minimum level of
total equity. Largely as a result of this restriction, approximately $780.0 million of the total equity is restricted from
payment as a dividend by the Company at March 31, 2018.
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair value is based upon market quotations, broker quotations, counterparty quotations or pricing services quotations,
which provide valuation estimates based upon reasonable market order indications and are subject to significant
variability based on market conditions, such as interest rates, credit spreads and market liquidity.  The fair value of the
mortgage loan receivables held for sale is based upon a securitization model utilizing market data from recent
securitization spreads and pricing.

Fair Value Summary Table

The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments, which are both reported at fair
value on a recurring basis (as indicated) or amortized cost/par, at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as
follows ($ in thousands):

March 31, 2018 
Weighted Average

Outstanding
Face Amount

Amortized
Cost Basis Fair Value

Fair Value
Method

Yield
%

Remaining
Maturity/Duration (years)

Assets:

CMBS(1) $ 983,104 $991,436 $982,284
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

2.89 % 2.93

CMBS interest-only(1) 2,492,711 (2)79,162 79,035
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

3.46 % 2.99

GNMA interest-only(3) 165,307 (2)4,540 3,975
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

6.60 % 4.04

Agency securities(1) 706 727 698
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

1.77 % 2.78

GNMA permanent
securities(1) 33,472 33,757 34,113

Internal model,
third-party
inputs

3.62 % 5.50

Mortgage loan
receivables held for
investment, net, at
amortized cost:
Mortgage loan
receivables held for
investment, net, at
amortized cost

3,550,544 3,528,185 3,532,369 Discounted
Cash Flow(4) 7.34 % 1.59

Provision for loan losses  N/A (7,000 ) (7,000 ) (5) N/A N/A

Mortgage loan
receivables held for sale 274,090 273,636 279,372

Internal model,
third-party
inputs(6)

5.09 % 9.71

FHLB stock(7) 77,915 77,915 77,915 (7) 4.25 %  N/A
Nonhedge
derivatives(1)(8) 713,900  N/A 92 Counterparty

quotations N/A 0.25
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Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements -
short-term 491,939 491,939 491,939 Discounted

Cash Flow(9) 3.25 % 0.23

Repurchase agreements -
long-term 262,438 262,438 262,438 Discounted

Cash Flow(10) 2.60 % 1.89

Mortgage loan financing 695,163 683,487 668,790 Discounted
Cash Flow(10) 4.91 % 2.71

CLO debt 683,095 683,095 683,095 Discounted
Cash Flow(9) 3.64 % 10.47

Participation Financing -
Mortgage Loan
Receivable

2,815 2,815 2,815 Discounted
Cash Flow(11) 17.00% 0.18

Borrowings from the
FHLB 1,348,000 1,348,000 1,326,100 Discounted

Cash Flow 1.82 % 2.44

Senior unsecured notes 1,166,201 1,152,834 1,150,860
Broker
quotations,
pricing services

5.39 % 5.03

(1)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded as a component of othercomprehensive income (loss) in equity.
(2)Represents notional outstanding balance of underlying collateral.

(3)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded in current periodearnings.

(4)

Fair value for floating rate mortgage loan receivables, held for investment is estimated to approximate the
outstanding face amount given the short interest rate reset risk (30 days) and no significant change in credit risk.
Fair value for fixed rate mortgage loan receivables, held for investment is measured using a hypothetical
securitization model utilizing market data from recent securitization spreads and pricing.

(5)Fair value is estimated to equal par value.

(6)Fair value for mortgage loan receivables, held for sale is measured using a hypothetical securitization modelutilizing market data from recent securitization spreads and pricing.

(7)Fair value of the FHLB stock approximates outstanding face amount as the Company’s captive insurance subsidiaryis restricted from trading the stock and can only put the stock back to the FHLB, at the FHLB’s discretion, at par.

(8)The outstanding face amount of the nonhedge derivatives represents the notional amount of the underlyingcontracts.

(9)

Fair value for repurchase agreement liabilities and CLO debt is estimated to approximate carrying amount
primarily due to the short interest rate reset risk (30 days) of the financings and the high credit quality of the assets
collateralizing these positions. If the collateral is determined to be impaired, the related financing would be
revalued accordingly. There are no impairments on any positions.
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(10)

For repurchase agreements - long term and mortgage loan financing, the carrying value approximates
the fair value discounting the expected cash flows at current market rates. If the collateral is determined
to be impaired, the related financing would be revalued accordingly. There are no impairments on any
positions.

(11)Fair value for Participation Financing - Mortgage Loan Receivable approximates amortized cost as this is a loanparticipation to a third party.

December 31, 2017  
Weighted Average

Outstanding
Face Amount

Amortized
Cost Basis Fair Value

Fair Value
Method

Yield
%

Remaining
Maturity/Duration (years)

Assets:

CMBS(1) $ 945,167 $954,397 $953,499
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

2.79 % 2.89

CMBS interest-only(1) 3,140,297 (2)112,609 113,071
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

3.16 % 3.08

GNMA interest-only(3) 172,916 (2)5,245 4,477
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

6.70 % 4.18

Agency securities(1) 720 743 728
Internal model,
third-party
inputs

1.80 % 2.94

GNMA permanent
securities(1) 33,745 34,386 34,742

Internal model,
third-party
inputs

3.62 % 5.66

Mortgage loan
receivables held for
investment, net, at
amortized cost:
Mortgage loan
receivables held for
investment, net, at
amortized cost

3,300,709 3,282,462 3,292,035 Discounted
Cash Flow(4) 7.18 % 1.61

Provision for loan losses  N/A (4,000 ) (4,000 ) (5) N/A N/A

Mortgage loan
receivables held for sale 232,527 230,180 236,428

Internal model,
third-party
inputs(6)

4.88 % 8.17

FHLB stock(7) 77,915 77,915 77,915 (7) 4.25 %  N/A
Nonhedge
derivatives(1)(8) 594,140  N/A 888 Counterparty

quotations N/A 0.24

Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements -
short-term 371,427 371,427 371,427 Discounted

Cash Flow(9) 3.19 % 0.35

Repurchase agreements -
long-term 101,983 101,983 101,983 Discounted

Cash Flow(10) 2.62 % 2.64

Mortgage loan financing 692,394 692,696 693,055 4.91 % 6.81
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Discounted
Cash Flow(10)

CLO debt 688,479 688,479 688,479 Discounted
Cash Flow(9) 3.40 % 10.77

Participation Financing -
Mortgage Loan
Receivable

3,107 3,107 3,107 Discounted
Cash Flow(11) 17.00% 0.43

Borrowings from the
FHLB 1,370,000 1,370,000 1,369,544 Discounted

Cash Flow 1.61 % 2.49

Senior unsecured notes 1,166,201 1,152,134 1,187,187
Broker
quotations,
pricing services

5.39 % 5.28

Nonhedge
derivatives(1)(8) 54,160  N/A 2,606 Counterparty

quotations N/A 2.44

(1)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded as a component of othercomprehensive income (loss) in equity.
(2)Represents notional outstanding balance of underlying collateral.

(3)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded in current periodearnings.

(4)

Fair value for floating rate mortgage loan receivables, held for investment is estimated to approximate the
outstanding face amount given the short interest rate reset risk (30 days) and no significant change in credit risk.
Fair value for fixed rate mortgage loan receivables, held for investment is measured using a hypothetical
securitization model utilizing market data from recent securitization spreads and pricing.

(5)Fair value is estimated to equal par value.

(6)Fair value for mortgage loan receivables, held for sale is measured using a hypothetical securitization modelutilizing market data from recent securitization spreads and pricing.

(7)Fair value of the FHLB stock approximates outstanding face amount as the Company’s captive insurance subsidiaryis restricted from trading the stock and can only put the stock back to the FHLB, at the FHLB’s discretion, at par.

(8)The outstanding face amount of the nonhedge derivatives represents the notional amount of the underlyingcontracts.

(9)

Fair value for repurchase agreement liabilities and CLO debt is estimated to approximate carrying amount
primarily due to the short interest rate reset risk (30 days) of the financings and the high credit quality of the assets
collateralizing these positions. If the collateral is determined to be impaired, the related financing would be
revalued accordingly. There are no impairments on any positions.

(10)

For repurchase agreements - long term and mortgage loan financing, the carrying value approximates
the fair value discounting the expected cash flows at current market rates. If the collateral is determined
to be impaired, the related financing would be revalued accordingly. There are no impairments on any
positions.

(11)Fair value for Participation Financing - Mortgage Loan Receivable approximates amortized cost as this is a loanparticipation to a third party.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, which are both reported at fair value on
a recurring basis (as indicated) or amortized cost/par, at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 ($ in thousands):

March 31, 2018 

Financial Instruments Reported at Fair Value on
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Outstanding Face
Amount

Fair Value
Level 1Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
CMBS(1) $ 983,104 $—$ — $982,284 $982,284
CMBS interest-only(1) 2,492,711 (2)—— 79,035 79,035
GNMA interest-only(3) 165,307 (2)—— 3,975 3,975
Agency securities(1) 706 —— 698 698
GNMA permanent securities(1) 33,472 —— 34,113 34,113
Nonhedge derivatives(4) 713,900 —92 — 92

$—$ 92 $1,100,105 $1,100,197

Financial Instruments Not Reported at Fair Value on
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Outstanding Face
Amount

Fair Value
Level 1Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Mortgage loan receivable held for investment, net, at
amortized cost:
Mortgage loans held by consolidated subsidiaries $ 3,550,544 $—$ — $3,532,369 $3,532,369
Provision for loan losses  N/A —— (7,000 ) (7,000 )
Mortgage loan receivable held for sale 274,090 —— 279,372 279,372
FHLB stock 77,915 —— 77,915 77,915

$—$ — $3,882,656 $3,882,656
Liabilities: 0
Repurchase agreements - short-term 491,939 $—$ — $491,939 $491,939
Repurchase agreements - long-term 262,438 —— 262,438 262,438
Mortgage loan financing 695,163 —— 668,790 668,790
CLO debt 683,095 —— 683,095 683,095
Participation Financing - Mortgage Loan Receivable 2,815 —— 2,815 2,815
Borrowings from the FHLB 1,348,000 —— 1,326,100 1,326,100
Senior unsecured notes 1,166,201 —— 1,150,860 1,150,860

$—$ — $4,586,037 $4,586,037

(1)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded as a component of othercomprehensive income (loss) in equity. 
(2) Represents notional outstanding balance of underlying collateral. 

(3)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded in current periodearnings. 

(4) 
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded in current period
earnings.  The outstanding face amount of the nonhedge derivatives represents the notional amount of the
underlying contracts.
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December 31, 2017 

Financial Instruments Reported at Fair Value on
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Outstanding Face
Amount

Fair Value
Level 1Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
CMBS(1) $ 945,167 $—$— $953,499 $953,499
CMBS interest-only(1) 3,140,297 (2)—— 113,071 113,071
GNMA interest-only(3) 172,916 (2)—— 4,477 4,477
Agency securities(1) 720 —— 728 728
GNMA permanent securities(1) 33,745 —— 34,742 34,742
Nonhedge derivatives(4) 594,140 —888 — 888

$—$888 $1,106,517 $1,107,405
Liabilities:
Nonhedge derivatives(4) $ 54,160 $—$2,606 $— $2,606

Financial Instruments Not Reported at Fair Value on
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Outstanding Face
Amount

Fair Value
Level 1Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Mortgage loan receivable held for investment, net, at
amortized cost:
Mortgage loans held by consolidated subsidiaries $ 3,300,709 $—$— $3,292,035 $3,292,035
Provision for loan losses  N/A —— (4,000 ) (4,000 )
Mortgage loan receivables held for sale 232,527 —— 236,428 236,428
FHLB stock 77,915 —— 77,915 77,915

$—$— $3,602,378 $3,602,378
Liabilities: 0
Repurchase agreements - short-term 371,427 $—$— $371,427 $371,427
Repurchase agreements - long-term 101,983 —— 101,983 101,983
Revolving credit facility — —— — —
Mortgage loan financing 692,394 —— 693,055 693,055
Participation Financing - Mortgage Loan Receivable 688,479 —— 688,479 688,479
Liability for transfers not considered sales 3,107 —— 3,107 3,107
Borrowings from the FHLB 1,370,000 —— 1,369,544 1,369,544
Senior unsecured notes 1,166,201 —— 1,187,187 1,187,187

$—$— $4,414,782 $4,414,782

(1)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded as a component of othercomprehensive income (loss) in equity. 
(2) Represents notional outstanding balance of underlying collateral. 

(3)Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded in current periodearnings. 
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(4) 
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis with the net unrealized gains or losses recorded in current period
earnings.  The outstanding face amount of the nonhedge derivatives represents the notional amount of the
underlying contracts.

The following table summarizes changes in Level 3 financial instruments reported at fair value on the consolidated
statements of financial condition for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 ($ in thousands):

Level 3 2018 2017

Balance at January 1, $1,106,517 $2,100,947
Transfer from level 2 — —
Purchases 135,058 45,726
Sales (122,356 ) (361,323 )
Paydowns/maturities (2,954 ) (74,285 )
Amortization of premium/discount (6,407 ) (19,357 )
Unrealized gain/(loss) (8,654 ) 4,911
Realized gain/(loss) on sale(1) (1,099 ) 5,361
Balance at March 31, $1,100,105 $1,701,980

(1)Includes realized losses on securities recorded as other than temporary impairments.

The following is quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs in our Level 3 measurements for those
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis ($ in thousands):

March 31, 2018 

Financial Instrument Carrying
Value

Valuation
Technique Unobservable Input Minimum Weighted

Average Maximum

CMBS (1) $982,284 Discounted cash
flow Yield (4) — % 3.42 % 21.15 %

Duration (years)(5) 0.00 3.20 8.04

CMBS interest-only (1) 79,035 (2)Discounted cashflow Yield (4) 2.66 % 3.78 % 6.71 %

Duration (years)(5) 0.27 2.91 4.30
Prepayment speed
(CPY)(5) 100.00 100.00 100.00

GNMA interest-only (3) 3,975 (2)Discounted cashflow Yield (4) — % 12.90 % 80.84 %

Duration (years)(5) 0.00 2.38 5.10
Prepayment speed
(CPJ)(5) 0.00 12.02 35.00

Agency securities (1) 698 Discounted cash
flow Yield (4) 1.4 % 2.48 % 2.95 %

Duration (years)(5) 0 3.12 4.49
GNMA permanent
securities (1) 34,113 Discounted cash

flow Yield (4) 4 % 81 % 6.91 %

Duration (years)(5) 3.03 3.76 6.91
Total $1,100,105
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(1)
CMBS, CMBS interest-only securities, Agency securities, GNMA construction securities, and GNMA permanent
securities are classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in the
current period in other comprehensive income.

(2)The amounts presented represent the principal amount of the mortgage loans outstanding in the pool in which theinterest-only securities participate.

(3)Agency interest-only securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in current periodearnings.
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(4)Significant increase (decrease) in the unobservable input in isolation would result in significantly lower (higher)fair value measurement.

(5)Significant increase (decrease) in the unobservable input in isolation would result in either a significantly lower orhigher (lower or higher) fair value measurement depending on the structural features of the security in question.

December 31, 2017 

Financial Instrument Carrying
Value

Valuation
Technique Unobservable Input Minimum Weighted

Average Maximum

CMBS (1) $953,499 Discounted cash
flow Yield (3) 0.61 % 3 % 18.32 %

Duration (years)(4) 0.12 3.19 7.84

CMBS interest-only (1) 113,072 (2)Discounted cashflow Yield (3) 2.7 % 3.52 % 6.31 %

Duration (years)(4) 0.39 3.06 4.46
Prepayment speed
(CPY)(4) 100.00 100.00 100.00

GNMA interest-only (3) 4,476 (2)Discounted cashflow Yield (4) 4.46 % 11.85 % 71.88 %

Duration (years)(5) 0.44 2.43 5.19
Prepayment speed
(CPJ)(5) 5.00 12.19 35.00

Agency securities (1) 728 Discounted cash
flow Yield (4) 1.4 % 2.16 % 2.52 %

Duration (years)(5) 0.00 3.22 4.72
GNMA permanent
securities (1) 34,742 Discounted cash

flow Yield (4) 2.62 % 3.44 % 6.93 %

Duration (years)(5) 1.40 5.75 5.94
Total $1,106,517
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